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INTRODUCTION
Institutional Overview
The University of Puerto Rico at Cayey (UPR) is part of the eleven-campus public university
system of Puerto Rico serving primarily the central southeastern geographical region of the
island. A Governing Board, acting as a related entity (See: Appendix 1) oversees the system’s
general functioning, while making decisions about the institution’s finances, governance,
budget, recruitment practices and compensation policies. The unit’s administrative structure
consists of a Chancellor, deans of Academic Affairs, Administrative Affairs and Student Affairs,
an Academic Senate and Administrative Board, along with other executive staff (See: Appendix
2). The institution acquired its autonomous status by means of a resolution of the Puerto Rico
Commission on Higher Education (PRCHE) and its institutional accreditation on behalf of the
Middle States Commission on Higher Education (MSCHE) since 1975, receiving its most recent
reaffirmation of accreditation on November 17, 2011.
Classified as a Baccalaureate College of Arts & Sciences Focus by the Carnegie Classification
of Institutions of Higher Education, the UPR Cayey provides a diverse, balanced and
interdisciplinary curriculum across its 24 baccalaureate programs1 in five academic fields:
Teacher Preparation Program (9), Natural Sciences (4), Social Sciences (4), Humanities (4) and
Business Administration (3). The following accreditations and recognitions evidence quality and
rigor of UPR-Cayey academic programs and student support offices:
●

●
●
●

Teacher Preparation Programs:
o Council for the Accreditation of Teacher Preparation Programs (CAEP)
o Association for Childhood Education (ACEI)
o National Association for Sports and Physical Education (NASPE)
o Council for Exceptional Children (CEC)
o National Science-Teachers Association (NSTA)
o Teachers of English to Speakers of Other Languages (TESOL)
The Business Administration and Office Technology and Administration Programs
o Accreditation Council for Business Schools and Programs (ACBSP)
General Library
o Association for College and Research Libraries (ACRL)
The Center for the Interdisciplinary Development of Students (CEDE)
o International Association of Counseling Services (IACS).

Multiple initiatives provide opportunities that enrich the academic and cultural life of our students
and the community at large, including: the Honors Program, Research Initiative Scientific
Enhancement Program (RISE), and Research Infrastructure for Minority Institutions (RIMI),
Howard Hughes Program, the Institute of Interdisciplinary Research (IIR), NIH-BRIC (20052015), NIH-BRAD (2015-2019), USDE Title V (2015-2020) and NIH-IPERT.
UPR-Cayey has distinguished itself in both Puerto Rican and the USA as documented in
several external reports such as: the American Medical College Application Service (AMCAS
2018) report which places the UPR-Cayey as the third institution in Puerto Rico from which most
Puerto Ricans apply to medical programs and 25th within the United States of America from
1 The Governing Board’s Certification 15 (2018-19) approved the Moratorium for Secondary Education in Mathematics and is pending the PR Council on Higher Education's
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which most Hispanics apply to medical schools. Also, the 2011 National Science Foundation
Survey of Earned Doctorates report placed UPR-Cayey among the top 41 United States
baccalaureate institutions of Hispanic Science and Engineering doctorate recipients (20052010).
The 2018 fall enrollment consisted of 3,108 undergraduate students, of which 593 were firsttime degree-seeking students. Out of the 658 first-time degree-seeking students admitted, 593
enrolled (90%). As such, the institution was able to enroll 97% of its expected first-time degreeseeking students. Historically, the UPR-Cayey admission process has resulted in a first-time
degree retention rate of 79% (2017 Cohort) and a national average graduation rate of 45%
(2011 Cohort), ranking second within the UPR system.
To support the Institution in achieving its mission, the UPR-Cayey relied on 119 highly qualified
faculty members, including teaching and non-teaching faculty (i.e., researchers, librarians,
psychologists, and counselors) for the 2018-2019 Academic Year. Institutional and
administrative support is provided by 262 non-faculty employees.
Demographic area.
The UPR-Cayey is constantly monitoring the
demographic changes within its service region in
order to make the necessary adjustments to its
admissions and enrollment projection processes.
Within the five municipalities that provide UPR-Cayey
with the greatest number of students, four have the
lowest percentage changes in population from 2000
to 2017 and four have the second lowest percentage
change in 18-year-old students enrolled in public
school (2007-2011 versus 2012-2016). However, 3
have the highest percentage of less than 14-year-old
students enrolled in public school (2015). Based on
this information, the UPR-Cayey expects a fairly
stable number of first-degree seeking applications for
the next 3 years.
UPR Cayey Mission and Vision.
UPR-Cayey academic programs, administrative
activities, and planning processes are clearly defined
and guided by the Institution’s Mission and Goals
which was revised on September 14, 2018 as a strategy for continuous improvement and to
ensure excellence across its academic, research and community service endeavors and all of
its operations2 (See: Appendix 3).
Mission.
"The University of Puerto Rico at Cayey is committed to offering an interdisciplinary education
among the Humanities, Social Sciences, Natural Sciences and Professional Schools. Promotes
the formation of ethical, autonomous, critical and socially responsible citizens. We affirm our
academic excellence, through research, community service and artistic creation".
Vision.
2 http://cayey.upr.edu/mision-vision-y-objetivos/
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"To be an educational model of intellectual and social transformation for undergraduate
students, through the integration of research, artistic creation and community service".
Institutional Context on Issues Addressed in the Report
On January 7, 2019, the Commission acted as follows:
"To acknowledge receipt of the supplemental information report. To note that the report
did not provide the requested evidence and was not conducive to Commission
review. To require the institution to show cause, by January 25, 2019, to
demonstrate why its accreditation should not be withdrawn because of
insufficient evidence that the institution is in compliance with Standard VI
(Planning, Resources, and Institutional Improvement), Requirements of Affiliation
11 and 14, and the Related Entities Policy. To note that the institution remains
accredited while on show cause. To note further that federal regulations, limit the
period during which an institution may be in non-compliance to two years. To
require a show cause report, due January 25, 2019, documenting evidence that
the institution has achieved and can sustain ongoing compliance with the
Commission’s standards, requirements, policies and procedures, and federal
compliance requirements.
The show cause report must include evidence of: (1) documented financial resources,
funding base, and plans for financial development adequate to support its
educational purposes and programs and to ensure financial stability (Standard VI
and Requirement of Affiliation 11); (2) updated information on the impact of the
Fiscal Oversight Management Board's plan and proposed restructuring on the
institution's status and finances (Standard VI); (3) an annual independent audit
confirming financial viability with evidence of follow-up on any concerns cited in
the audit’s accompanying management letter(Standard VI); (4) a record of
responsible fiscal management, has a prepared budget for the current year, and
undergoes an external financial audit on an annual basis (Standard VI and
Requirement of Affiliation 11); and (5) certification by the related entity that it
recognizes the Commission's compliance requirements and will ensure that
responsibilities of the related entity are fulfilled, including making freely available
to the Commission accurate, fair, and complete information through disclosure of
information required by the Commission to carry out its accrediting
responsibilities (Related Entities Policy; Requirement of Affiliation 14). To require
that the institution complete and submit for approval, by January 25, 2019, a
comprehensive, implementable teach-out plan (Teach-Out Plans and
Agreements Policy and Procedures).
In accordance with Commission policy and federal regulations, the teach-out plan must
provide for the equitable treatment of students to complete their education, if the
Commission were to withdraw accreditation, and include any signed, teach-out
agreements that the institution has entered into or intends to enter into with
another institution. To direct an on-site show cause visit following submission of
the report. The purpose of the on-site show cause visit is to verify the information
provided in the show cause report and the institution’s ongoing and sustainable
compliance with the Commission’s standards, requirements, policies and
procedures, and federal compliance requirements. To direct a prompt
Commission liaison guidance visit to discuss the Commission's expectations. To
note that the institution will be invited to appear before the Commission when it
5
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meets to consider the institution’s show cause report. The date of the next
evaluation will be determined upon reaffirmation of accreditation"
(http://cayey.upr.edu/wp-content/uploads/sites/10/2019/01/Institution-ActionsList-UPR-Cayey.pdf)
On January 15, 2019, MSCHE Vice Presidents Drs. Hilda Colón Plumey and Idna Colbert held
a 30-minute video-conference call to discuss the Show Cause process, requirements, and
expectations, along with providing an opportunity for campuses to clarify any doubts or express
their concerns. It was also explained that the report did not require an in-depth Teach-Out-Plan,
due to time constrictions, nor did the institutions have to include any signed, teach-out
agreements, as the UPR campuses have not entered into agreements with other institutions.
This report will serve as evidence of UPR-Cayey continued compliance with Accreditation
Standard VI (Planning, Resources, and Institutional Improvement), Requirements of Affiliation
11 and 14, and the Related Entities Policy, despite the fiscal and accreditation challenges it has
as a result of Audited Financial Statements being systemic in nature as opposed to individual.
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FINANCIAL RESOURCES
The show cause report must include evidence of: (1) documented financial resources, funding
base, and plans for financial development adequate to support its educational purposes and
programs and to ensure financial stability (Standard VI and Requirement of Affiliation 11).
UPR Central Administration Response
Sources of funding.
The University of Puerto Rico (UPR) has various sources of funding, including:
1)
2)
3)
4)
5)

Central Government Appropriations (Act 2- 1966, as amended)
Appropriations from the Gambling Law (Law 22 from May 15, 1948)
Own Income (Including, but not limited to: tuition, fees, interest income and other sources)
Joint Resolutions approved by the Legislature
Federal Funds transfers and grants

Act 2 of January 20, 1966, granted the UPR with Central Government Appropriations which
were defined as a percentage (%) of the Commonwealth revenues, a percentage that increased
gradually over time3. This law sets forth the mechanism in which the Government of Puerto Rico
allocates resources to the UPR for the expansion required at the time, due to the increase in
student population and demand.
As of 2016, Central Government Appropriations represented more than 70% of the UPR’s
income, which had the indirect effect of facilitating very low tuition costs, thereby ensuring an
accessible and quality post-secondary education to the residents of the island Puerto Rico.
Additional funding sources.
The UPR also has other sources of funding through Legislative actions in the form of Joint
Resolutions. For example:
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Strengthening of the services provided by the Centro Ponceño de Autismo
Operating expenses of the Puerto Rico Technology Assistance Program – Act 236-2000
Resident Training for the Department of Surgery and Trauma – Act 106-2013
Scholarship Grant for Odontology and Veterinary Students – Act 17-1948
Post Mortem Brain Biopsy Registry of Alzheimer Patients – Act 237-1999
Creation of an Integrated Services Center for Minors Victims of Sexual Abuse – Act 1582013
Operational Expenses for the Center of Advanced Studies for Medical Emergencies
Personnel – Act 235-2004
Medical Services Provided Indigent Population – Joint Resolution 1527-2004
Payroll for Residents and Interns of the Graduate Medical Education Program of the
Medical Sciences Campus – Act 299-2003
Seismic Network Operating Expenses Act 106-2002
Legislative Scholarships: Scholarship and Financial Aid for students – Act 170-2002
Budget composition.

3

After fiscal year 1997, the allotted percentage was to be increased to 9.60% of the average
total contributions received by the Department of Treasury during the last two previous years
and any other special funds created by legislation after July, 1st 1993. However due to Puerto
Rico’s fiscal constraints, the “formula” was frozen at $833 million dollars in Fiscal Year 2016.
7
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The UPR’s revenues are classified in two (2) categories: Discretionary and Restricted.
The Discretionary Fund is equivalent to the UPR’s General Fund. It is the main portion of the
budget and provides the funds for operational expenses of each Campus of the System. The
UPR’s Central Administration has the responsibility of distributing the funds throughout the
System. The concepts that make up the General Fund are the Central Government
Appropriations, Gambling Law, and Own Income (Tuition, Dues and Charges, and others).
The Restricted Funds are tied to specific purposes and may not be assigned for any other
activities that deviate from these purposes. They are comprised of funds granted by diverse
governmental entities (federal and/or local), Municipalities, Corporations, Non- Profit Entities,
and Individuals. Federal student aid and scholarships (local and/or federal), Federal
Government Contracts, Contracts with Municipalities and/or other Local Agencies, Private
Donations, Student Practices, Investment Funds, Rotating Accounts are all deemed restricted
for budgeting purposes.
In terms of budget planning, the Central Administration manages the General Fund and
allocates to different units. The units utilize the Restricted funds according to stipulations
regarding their use.
Decrease in funding as a result of Certified Fiscal Plan for the Commonwealth of
Puerto Rico.
On October 23, 2018, the Fiscal Oversight and Management Board (FOMB) certified the latest
iteration of the Commonwealth Fiscal Plan (CW). The CW Fiscal Plan sets forth a series of
revenue enhancing and cost saving measures with the goal of restructuring the island’s
finances, thereby promoting economic stability and access to capital markets. One of the costs
saving measures set forth in CW Fiscal Plan is the reduction of Central Government
Appropriations to the Municipalities and the University of Puerto Rico4.
As a result, the UPR has sustained a significant decrease in Central Government Appropriations
in the past two fiscal years. Additional decrease in such appropriations is expected for the
upcoming four-year period of the Fiscal Plan. Despite the reductions that have been
experienced, approximately $188 million in the past two (2) fiscal years, the UPR is cash flow
positive and remains a viable operation.
As illustrated in the following table, the University is transitioning its funding model, from a highly
dependent and subsidized institution – from the current 66% of its total receipts received from
Central Government Appropriations – to a more self-funded public institution, similar to other
public universities benchmarks of 40%. This process will no doubt be a challenging and longterm process, but the UPR has the resources and capabilities to execute.

4 See, Certified Fiscal Plan (Oct. 2018); Chapter 15
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Government Appropriations

Total
Received

% Dependence on Government

FY'17

$834.00

$1,258.00

66%

FY'18

$708.00

$1,219.93

58%

FY'19

$646.00

$1,359.18

48%

FY'20

$560.00

$1,251.55

45%

FY'21

$489.00

$1,147.28

43%

FY'22

$466.00

$1,135.09

41%

FY'23

$442.00

$1,111.87

40%

UPR-Cayey Response
As documented in the September 1, 2018 Supplemental Information Report, during the past
years UPR Cayey has experienced reductions in its assigned budget from government
appropriations that have been presented and discussed among the different institutional
constituents. Despite these budget reductions, UPR Cayey continues to offer one of the utmost
valued scenarios for higher education in the Island and remains as one of the most affordable
public institution. Highlights of our excellence include:
One of the highest passing rates (100%) in the Puerto Rico Statewide Teacher Certification Test
(PCMAS-2017).
●
●
●

In the last four years, UPR Cayey faculty have published over 177 articles, at a rate of
44 per year5.
The second highest admission (98%) and graduation rate (45%, 2011 Cohort) within the
UPR System.
Third campus with the highest NIH funds allocated after Medical Sciences Campus and
Río Piedras ($868,437).

Regardless of all the budget reductions and challenges encountered, UPR Cayey continues to
excel in its academic offerings, undergraduate research, community services, innovation and its
interdisciplinary education.
The UPR Cayey Statement of Projected Revenue and Expenses for Consolidated Budget FY19
thru FY23 was developed during our assessment and planning process, displays our actual
FY19 budget and five-year in alignment with the Central Administration’s New Fiscal Plan for
University of Puerto Rico. Nevertheless, the projections took into account the following
premises included in the New Fiscal Plan for University of Puerto Rico as certified on October
23, 2018 by the Financial Oversight and Management Board (FOMB), amongst others:
●

Elimination of Christmas Bonus in FY20 for all employees;

5 https://cayey.upr.edu/publicacionesfacultad/
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●
●
●
●
●

Medical Insurance reduction in FY 20;
Up to 15-day liquidations of sick days in FY20;
Reduction in undergraduate population;
Reduction in Central Government Appropriations;
Increase in tuition fees and other measures to increase revenues.

Our projections reflect a positive net revenue from FY19 to FY23, evidencing that we have the
financial capacity to operate during the next years. A projected decrease in student enrollment
for the next academic years (i.e., 3,118 for 2019-20; 2,879 for 2020-21; 2,631 for 2021-22;
2,478 for 2022-23; and 2,320 for 2023-24), in addition to actions in place to reduce expenses
and to make better use of resources, and a constant flow of external funds has allowed us to
have the financial capacity to continue operations and face the challenges from the coming
years.
We projected reductions in the General Fund from Government Appropriations of 6.63% in
FY20, 5.32% in FY21, 1.96% in FY22, and 1.80% in FY23, as provided by the Central
Administration Budget Office. Funds from retirement attrition will be used to address this
reduction. Despite a projected decrease in state funds for FY20, an annual projected increase of
5% each year from FY21 to FY23 is expected due to agreements between the UPR and Puerto
Rico Government to train public employees in different areas.
Federal funds are projected to increase 5% each year as a result of several strategies pursuing
external funding. Recently, the US Department of Education approved the amount of
$2,600,657 as Emergency Assistance to institutions of higher education. We expect to have
these resources available for FY20. These funds aim to improve our infrastructure, to properly
respond to emergency situations, such as hurricanes, and to directly support students with
financial needs. UPR Cayey has been successful in maintaining a constant flow of federal funds
as a result of actively encouraging faculty to apply for external funding. Faculty engaged in
successful sponsored projects receive financial incentives and are also provided with release
time. Also, the institution established a $400,000 fund in FY19 to support successful initiatives.
The funds are carefully managed according to guidelines and regulations and are strictly
monitored to guarantee the efficient use of the funds according to our mission and goals.
In spite of financial adjustments, we have continued strengthening this institutional commitment.
Our Institutional Enterprises the Extended University (UNEX) and the Division for Continued
Education and Professional Studies (DECEP), will continue to strengthen the academic offer, as
well as other resources assigned to support the institutional operations, in spite of the possible
reduction of student enrollment. Finally, institutional non-restricted funds are used as a
contingency fund carefully administered.
As part of the UPR Fiscal Plan, the Central Administration seeks to generate a leaner
administrative structure and increase efficiency in campus administration. The Plan places UPR
Cayey as part of the Eastern Conglomerate that will share several service offices and
managerial positions, thus providing a safety net in response to the expected attrition in the area
of human resources. The reorganization of campuses is expected to be successful due in part
to the current technologies in place (e.g., Oracle, NEXT, etc.), personnel movement between
units, personnel continued education training, and the evaluation of current procedures and
bylaws, thus ensuring continuity of tasks despite personnel attrition.
The challenge UPR-Cayey currently faces is not having sufficient information as to how the
UPR Central Administration will take into account the expected administrative and academic
reorganization of the UPR. Although the guidelines for the establishment of conglomerates
10
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continues to be analyzed by the Central Administration, UPR Cayey has taken measures to
address the continuity of administrative and academic operations. Our planning process and
risk assessment plan (See: Appendix 4) guide the financial planning at the institution regarding
our educational purposes and programs. Student population reduction due to demographics,
faculty and non-teaching personnel reductions, and budget reduction are monitored closely in
order to continue planning into the future. The actions taken to reduce expenses and increase
revenues, along with the allocation of operational funds guarantee compliance with the mission,
goals and the strategic plan of our institution, fully complying with the needs of the students
enrolled. Our risk assessment plan also includes the construction of a budget under the premise
of a greater reduction as presented in the fiscal plan approved by the FOMB regarding the
reductions in the Government appropriations assigned to the UPR System.
Historically, UPR Cayey has developed, exhibited and sustained sound fiscal planning and
management, regardless of steep budget reductions and those projected. UPR Cayey
consistently has demonstrated efficient budgeting and expenditure practices, to the point of
concluding academic years with surplus on multiple occasions. Sound planning and
management of our finances have helped the institution weather the storm during these years of
recession, and have demonstrated to higher echelon administrators, as well as the FOMB, that
UPR-Cayey has the ability to administer the institution effectively, while providing the required
academic excellence and success rate, in preparation for a restructuring of the public university
system. Therefore, it is our position that when the UPR is restructured, Cayey will become the
hub campus for the Eastern Conglomerate.
Successful management and budget allocations.
Our success in overcoming budget reductions results from setting our planning processes as a
key component to financial stability, growth and sustainability. Taking into account the continued
reductions in Government appropriations, the institution has been very diligent in establishing its
planning process by allocating its financial resources to reflect institutional priorities. Our
planning, budgeting and assessment process has allowed us to make the necessary
adjustments based on institutional priorities to fulfill our mission and goals as has been
evidenced to the MSCHE since 2010.
The guiding principles in the budget development process includes the protection of core
academic programs to preserve the institution’s essential teaching and research activities,
community services and student learning. Thus, despite facing a budget reduction of 5.09% in
FY19, the institution was able to fully meet the needs of its 3,108 students for academic
offerings, was able to fund 11 non-teaching positions, continue with faculty promotions,
assigned infrastructure funds for maintenance and renewal, and established institutional funds
for the continued support of research and other academic endeavors. Even though the UPR
Central Administration enacted policies to freeze all vacant positions, the institution recruited
non-tenure-track faculty that allowed us to fulfill our educational commitment. Finally, in order to
ensure the adequate maintenance and renewal of the institution’s infrastructure, the reduction of
the government’s allocation for the UPR was strengthened at the institution thru income
generated by the rental of space and end of the year budget economies.
Through the funds allocated to improve infrastructure, maintenance and renewal, the institution
ensures adequate maintenance and renewal of facilities. This FY19 we were able to asphalt
parking spaces for students and employees, main roads and access roads to the water well, in
addition to new parking spaces (in preparation for the UPR academic and administrative
restructurings) at a cost of $270,675. Two more projects are on their way: removal of asbestos
in the Security Facilities at an estimated cost of $264,000 and an installation of an air
11
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conditioning system in the Miguel Melendez Munoz building at an estimated cost of $99,724.
These projects exemplify a well-planned, long-term vision of infrastructure improvements, taking
into consideration crucial elements, thus benefiting campus community at large. Infrastructure
improvements will continue in the following years as FEMA allocated to UPR Cayey the amount
of $1,391,193 to recover for damages caused by hurricanes. Figure 1 depicts the UPR Cayey
budget, planning and assessment process.
Figure 1: Successful management and budget allocation

The alignment of our planning, budgeting and assessment processes have proved to be
efficient and appropriate to fulfill our mission and goals, while allowing us to continuously assess
and improving programs and services. It has been of significant importance for identifying
challenges and allowing us to mitigate any risks and benefit from potential opportunities.
Throughout the years, the budget distribution reflects the priorities and objectives of the
institution, as evidenced by the funds allocated to instruction and academic support, where the
highest percentages of the funds combined are allocated, as displayed in Figure 2.
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Figure 2: Comparison of Budget allocated by function: five fiscal years

Budgeting process at UPR Cayey.
The construction and continuous assessment of quarterly UPR Cayey budget forecasts,
developed through conversations with department heads, the administrative board, staff
meetings, and other constituents, allows us to identify economies in the use of funds and
redistribute them according to the needs and priorities established in each of the fiscal years.
An example of this continuous budget assessment is the encumbrance of funds in FY18, as
done in previous years, to cover lump sum payments to employees who retired by December
2018. This action prevents lump sum payments from becoming an additional economic burden
for the new fiscal year. This and other actions such as task reassignments among administrative
personnel, restructuring of institutional processes, more efficient use of available technologies,
merging offices and programs with similar functions, increase in the institution’s investment
infrastructure, increase in course capacity, strengthening the effort to increase external funds,
and securing the commitment of cost sharing to sponsored projects, prepare us for sustainability
and continuity.
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FISCAL PLAN
The show cause report must include evidence of: (2) updated information on the impact of the
Fiscal Oversight Management Board's plan and proposed restructuring on the institution's status
and finances (Standard VI);
UPR Central Administration Response
PROMESA background.
The Puerto Rico Oversight, Management, and Economic Stability Act, Public Law 114-187
(“PROMESA”) was enacted on June 30, 2016 by the United States Congress to establish,
among other things:
▪

the Oversight Board (or “FOMB”), which provides oversight of the Commonwealth’s
restructuring efforts by, among other things: (i) reviewing and approving fiscal plans and
budgets for the Commonwealth and its covered instrumentalities and (ii) representing
the Commonwealth and its covered instrumentalities in any cases commenced under
Title III of PROMESA;

▪

an out-of-court debt modification process for the Commonwealth and its covered
instrumentalities to restructure their indebtedness subject to approval by the Oversight
Board and the United States District Court for the District of Puerto Rico (the “District
Court”);

▪

a court-supervised, quasi-bankruptcy process similar to chapter 9 of the U.S. Bankruptcy
Code to allow the Commonwealth and its covered instrumentalities to restructure their
indebtedness pursuant to a plan of adjustment;

▪

a Congressional Task Force on Economic Growth in Puerto Rico that reports to
Congress on the conditions leading to the Commonwealth’s fiscal crisis and the status of
the Commonwealth’s public debt; and

▪

a framework for the designation, oversight and implementation of critical infrastructure
projects aimed at growing the Commonwealth’s economy

As mentioned above, PROMESA establishes two alternate procedures for the restructuring of
the indebtedness of the Commonwealth and other designated instrumentalities—proceedings
under Title III and Title VI6. Title III creates a court-supervised debt-adjustment mechanism,
which imports heavily from chapter 9 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code (including its provisions
regarding the ability to bind non-consenting classes of creditors if certain requirements are
satisfied). On the other hand, Title VI creates a streamlined process for achieving negotiated
modifications of certain indebtedness of the Commonwealth or a covered territorial
instrumentality with the consent of a supermajority of those voting in any affected class—or
“Pool”—provided that such supermajority of those voting also constitutes a majority of the
claims outstanding in such Pool. Importantly, if the voting thresholds are met, the terms of such
6

Section 207 of PROMESA also provides a mechanism to reach consensual
agreements with creditors.
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a restructuring will apply to all other creditors within the same Pool, including those who did not
cast a vote and those who voted against the proposed modification.
At its first public meeting held on September 30, 2016, the Oversight Board issued a resolution
designating the Commonwealth and certain of its public corporations and instrumentalities as
“covered territorial instrumentalities” pursuant to Section 101(d)(1)(A) of PROMESA. The UPR,
together with over sixty other component units of the Commonwealth, was designated as a
“Covered Territorial Instrumentality” by the FOMB, and, therefore, subject to the requirements of
PROMESA, including, but not limited to the submission of a fiscal plan.
UPR’s actions under PROMESA: Proactive approach.
It must be noted that the Fiscal Plan for an entity is not a stagnant document, and that it may be
amended yearly, or as mandated by the FOMB when circumstances warrant. Since all of the
Fiscal Plans must be aligned in macroeconomic factors and assumptions, the UPR’s Fiscal Plan
will also be impacted by changes to the CW’s Fiscal Plan.
The following timeline illustrates the relevant facts pertaining to the different Fiscal Plan
iterations, to wit:
August 1, 2017:

UPR submitted a ten-year Fiscal Plan to the Financial Oversight and
Management Board (“FOMB”). Shortly after, Hurricanes Irma and Maria
made landfall on Puerto Rico and caused infrastructure damages to UPR
campuses of approximately $132 million.

October 31, 2017:

FOMB requested a revised five-year Fiscal Plan that includes the
extensive recovery efforts needed.

March 21, 2018:

UPR submitted a revised fiscal plan draft. After consideration of FOMB’s
comments, on April 5, 2018 the UPR submitted a revised version which
identified $798 million in measures taken for the period ending Fiscal
Year 2023.

April 20, 2018:

FOMB published its own fiscal plan and suggested further policy
initiatives in the form of recommendations. On April 20, 2018, at the
Board’s thirteenth public meeting, UPR appeared before the Board to
discuss the initiatives proposed by the UPR and the differences between
policy decisions and fiscal determinations. Nevertheless, at the
conclusion of said meeting, the FOMB certified its version of the UPR
Fiscal Plan.

June 29, 2018:

FOMB certified a revised fiscal plan which included macro changes from
the CW Fiscal Plan.

August 20, 2018:

UPR submitted its own fiscal plan to the FOMB. Following a notice of
violation from the FOMB, the UPR submitted a revised plan on
September 7, 2018, which includes measures that demonstrate UPR’s
cooperation with the Board and willingness to narrow differences between
UPR and FOMB’s fiscal plan targets.

October 23, 2018:

FOMB certified their latest version of the UPR Fiscal Plan (the “Certified
UPR Fiscal Plan”). Said Fiscal Plan sets forth consented measures and
some proposals that are still being assessed by the UPR in order to
address the issue without hindering operational capacity.
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It is important to point out that there are pending legal processes that question the FOMB’s
ability to execute what may be deemed Policy Measures. The FOMB may not dictate internal
policy decisions for the entities, and it also lacks legislative powers to strike down existing laws.
The UPR has a legal duty to the cause of higher education in Puerto Rico. Thus, the initiatives
that may negatively affect the ability to meet said duties have been and will be disputed (e.g.
100% elimination of all tuition exemptions).
UPR implementation results: Substantial progress.
Despite the legal and/or philosophical differences that may arise between the UPR and the
FOMB, the fact remains the UPR has successfully executed multiple efforts to bridge the
funding gap caused by Central Government Appropriations. UPR is focused on delivering
results, but in order to meet MSCHE’s Standards, some of the measures require adjustments or
lengthier implementation timelines.
With regards to the measures for Fiscal Year 2019, first year of implementation of the latest fiveyear Fiscal Plan, the University has already executed on most of its fiscal and transformation
initiatives. Steps to achieve the projected impact of $529.210 million in measures (revenue
enhancements, institutional expense controls and transformational enhancements) for the next
five-years has already begun, or 52.54% of the five-year target compared to the Universities
Fiscal Plan, or 44.80% compared the FOMB Fiscal Plan. (See: Appendix 5 for detailed
results).
The following list describes the major achievements in revenue enhancements, expense control
and other transformational initiatives, to wit:
Revenue enhancements.
Tuition: For the Academic Year 2019, the University increased the undergraduate tuition cost
per credit from $58 per credit to $115 per credit. This initiative represents approximately
$53.555 million in additional annual revenues or $267.774 million in the five-year Fiscal Plan
period.
For the Academic Year 2019, the University increased the graduate tuition cost from an average
cost of $3,699 per student to $4,967 per student. This initiative represents approximately
$7.874 million in additional annual revenues or $39.368 million in the five-year Fiscal Plan
period.
With the increase in tuition, the University does not expect a significant reduction in student
population, as the first semester of 2018 has shown.
Dues and Charges: For Academic Year 2019, the University has increased most of the dues
and charges. This initiative represents approximately $6.064 million in additional annual
revenues or $30.318 million in the five-year Fiscal Plan period.
Exemptions: For the Academic Year 2019, the UPR modified its tuition exemption program as
follows: (i) full scholarship exclusively for honor and graduate research students; (ii) 50%
exemption to employees, athletes and others; and, (iii) reduced and capped the amount of
exemptions granted to student athletes to 2,000 participants (previously 3,124). This initiative
represents approximately $14.905 million in additional revenues or $74.526 million in the fiveyear Fiscal Plan period.
PR Science & Technology Trust Patent: In 2018, the University executed an MOU with the
Puerto Rico Science & Technology Trust that provide revenue sharing opportunities for patents
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being commercialized from University employees. This initiative is expected to provide between
$500,000 to $2.0 million in annual revenues.
Institutional expense controls.
Headcount Reduction: As of December 31, 2018, the University had 11,043 employees
compared to 11,802 employees on December 31, 2017. The 759-employee reduction can be
compared to the UPR Fiscal Plan target reduction for Fiscal Year 2019 of 842. The University
understands that the target for Fiscal Year 2019 will be achieved. This initiative/impact
represents approximately $35.941 million in total compensation annual savings or $179.705
million in the five-year Fiscal Plan period.
Marginal Benefit Reduction: For Calendar Year 2019, the University has reduced its paid
holidays from 17 days to 15 days. This initiative represents approximately $1.525 million in
annual savings or $7.522 million in the five-year Fiscal Plan period.
Transformational enhancements.
Plaza University Revenue: Plaza Universitaria is a UPR component unit. Two additional
revenue line items related to Plaza Universitaria were identified in the audited financial
statements of Fiscal Year 2017 but had not included on the University’s original budget. The
UPR Fiscal Plan includes $12.3 million as a one-time transfer for Fiscal Year 2019, and $2
million for recurring annual revenue to be transferred from Plaza University operation
commencing in Fiscal Year 2019. Total impact for the five-year Fiscal Plan period would be
approximately $22.342 million.
Institutional Transform Office (PMO Implementation): On August 27, 2018, the UPR
Governing Board approved the creation of a PMO structure with a $10.001 million budget. The
purpose of the PMO office is to develop, execute and monitor all initiatives related to the
University’s fiscal plan. The PMO office reports to the UPR Governing Board, similar to the
Internal Audit office. In the near term, the UPR Board will manage administrative matters to set
up the PMO, including office space, equipment, personnel hires and any external advisor
engagements that may be required to achieve fully operational status. Total projected costs to
implement the PMO office is $33.395 million for the five-year Fiscal Plan period.
The University can already report on the results of the initiatives it has executed. Considering
the reduction in Central Government Appropriations for Fiscal Year 2019 (approximately
$44.074 million) and payment to bondholders under a Forbearance Agreement (approximately
$22.450 million), cash balances of the University have remained stable in the first half of Fiscal
Year 2019 ($257.228 million as of December 31, 2018, compared to $251.892 million as of
June 30, 2018, an increase of $5.336 million).
Next steps and future measures.
Even with all initiatives that have been implemented, the UPR is working on additional
measures to secure the long-term financial sustainability of the University System. Additional
initiatives that been developed and are being implemented include:
Revenue Enhancements
Tuition. The University’s Governing Board, as included in the UPR’s Fiscal Plan, projects
additional annual increases in undergraduate cost of tuition.
●
●
●

$120 cost per credit for Academic Year 2020
$125 cost per credit for Academic Year 2021
$135 cost per credit for Academic Year 2022
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●

$140 cost per credit for Academic Year 2023

The University is also projecting additional annual increases to graduate cost of tuition.
●
●
●
●

$5,898 average cost per student for Academic Year 2020
$6,288 average cost per student for Academic Year 2021
$6,541 average cost per student for Academic Year 2022
$6,617 average cost per student for Academic Year 2023

With these increases in tuition, the University does not expect a significant reduction in student
population for the five-year Fiscal Plan period.
Exemptions. Additional reduction in the amount of total exemption issued is expected for the
subsequent four-year period, approximately 1,100 less exemptions are projected, compared to
Fiscal Year 2019 amounts. The UPR does not agree with the across-the-board termination of
all exemptions suggested by the FOMB for a variety of reasons. For example, eliminating all
athletes’ exemptions will undoubtedly hinder the ability of the UPR to attract donors, private
funds, and sponsors as well as its ability to market itself to attract more out-of-state students.
Every university has scholarships for talented students in sports, theatre and others endeavors.
It must be noted that, overall, student-athletes have better graduation rates than the regular
student population. Additionally, with the recent increases in tuition costs and expected future
increases, the University is seeking mechanisms to ease the financial burden on students.
Federal Grants and Contracts
The University’s newly appointed President has emphasized on the importance for the
University to access additional federal and private funds. Obtaining additional federal funds has
been identified as one of the key projects for the newly established PMO. For Fiscal Year 2020
the University is confident it will achieve and surpass the $5 million incremental revenues
included on the Fiscal Plan. Through the PMO unit, the University will have a dedicated team to
enhance the current federal program procurement procedures.
Institutional Expense Controls
Headcount Reduction / University’s Restructuring: Additional reduction in personnel is
being evaluated. The University is committed to adopting a series of actions to improve its
fiscal, social and economic trajectory. The reforms and measures being considered will be
essential to making the University a sustainable and impactful institution for years to come.
Any measure that may have an impact on the quality of education will be discussed with the
Middle States Higher Education Commission before implementation. This is the main reason the
University cannot accept the FOMB’s Fiscal Plan recommendation of a four-campus Hub
structure. Further analyses and due diligence need to be performed.
The UPR, through the newly established PMO office, will seek assistance in developing a
strategic plan including an implementation roadmap centered around academic transformation,
and operational reorganization as set forth on the University’s Fiscal Plan. The University seeks
a strong understanding of its capacity to support future enrollment and programmatic growth,
relative to resources and support structure to deliver optimal student outcomes. Initial analyses
will be focused on:
● Review current operational and organizational structures
● Review current faculty staff and profile by campus
● Develop new faculty organizational structure by hub
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●
●
●

Non-faculty staff review
Medical Campus Transformation review
Optimum facility footprint

Campus Conglomerates (Hub)
The process of institutional restructuring addressed in the UPR Fiscal Plan will focus primarily
on the elimination of vacant positions (attrition) and improving administrative processes. The
UPR Administration initiated an extensive and inclusive analysis of the proposed initiative to
reduce administrative costs by campus conglomerates. All these planning efforts will be
informed to MSCHE in a timely fashion. No final implementation will be executed during the
Show Cause process. The UPR will identify the structures that will be consolidated or
integrated to generate savings and address the natural attrition of employees.
The plan to address the restructuring of the UPR system into conglomerates of the campuses
will be executed in two phases. The first phase focuses on consulting with the university
community and evaluating various proposals for conglomerates, some of which were presented
as alternatives in the UPR Fiscal Plan. A series of visits to each campus were organized by the
Interim Vice President, Dr. Ubaldo M. Córdova, at the request of the President of the UPR, Dr.
Jorge Haddock, to present the general premises for the creation of the conglomerates. They
were carried out during the months of October and November 2018. The visits permitted the
collection of staff and faculty input, suggestions and proposals that will allow the administration
to draw up a clearer route of how to address the restructuring.
The conglomerate premises that were consulted with the university community are the following:
1. The aim is to maintain the 11 UPR campuses operating.
2. The campuses and units will be part of 4 to 5 conglomerates.
3. The focus will be on administrative consolidation without affecting student service and
minimizing the movement of staff and students from original campus.
4. The academic program and courses offer will not be affected by the conglomerates, if
changes occur, they will be based on clearly established data and parameters.
5. Will work towards maintaining and possibly raising the current 55 thousand UPR
registered undergraduate and graduate students for the year 2022-2023.
6. There will be no layoff of faculty or staff members.
After completing the ongoing consulting phase with the university community, a proposal
regarding the composition of the conglomerates will be presented to the UPR Governing Board
by President Haddock.
The UPR system composition under consideration consists of two conglomerates, one in the
eastern side of Puerto Rico and another one in the western side, while the campuses of Río
Piedras, Mayagüez and Medical Sciences remain unchanged. The Eastern Conglomerate
includes Bayamón, Carolina, Cayey and Humacao units. The Western Conglomerate includes
Ponce, Utuado, Arecibo and Aguadilla. This proposal takes into consideration geographic
issues, affinity of programs, infrastructure and resources, and the possible development of new
opportunities to strengthen the University. As stated earlier, this proposal will not be
implemented during the Show Cause process. If and when it is implemented, it will be in
accordance with MSCHE accreditation and the PR Education Council guidelines.
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After the proposal is approved by the UPR Governing Board, the second phase will focus on a
plan for possible integration of academic programs and consolidation of infrastructure. This will
include consideration of proposals and comments obtained by the university community as well
as comments from MSCHE. With regard to the academic programs, for example, it will be done
through adoption of online tools to minimize the relocation of students and employees. The
changes will be implemented with sensitivity. A collaborative culture will be fostered among the
conglomerate's facilities to share resources and create opportunities that generate or save
funds. Administrative integration will also take place. The transformation measures of the
administrative structure will be thoroughly studied as presented in the fiscal plan. The use of
efficient strategies is expected to create the necessary savings. The changes that will be
implemented are aimed at the institution achieving infrastructure, administrative and academic
efficiency.
The restructuring to conglomerates is seen by the UPR Administration as an opportunity to
update the processes and administrative practices that the University has been carrying out for
decades and that are relevant and practical to properly serve the economic and historical
situation in which Puerto Rico is in. The UPR will use this opportunity to project ourselves into
the future with a clear vision of how we want the University to evolve administratively, in the
search and generation of income while maintaining or improving its academic quality without
sacrificing service to students nor employees. Regardless of the conglomerate model and the
expected time to implement it, the main value to be gained of this restructuring is in fostering an
environment of collaboration among the campuses, to share resources and develop diverse
academic initiatives.
Fringe Benefit Reduction: Additional fringe benefit reduction is being evaluated. Any decision
on coverage or amendments to the covenants would have to go through a participative process
that includes input from an existing Medical Plan Committee, and a Request For Proposal
(“RFP”) process.
At this moment, the UPR’s forecasts are reviewing actual medical expenditures per beneficiary.
However, that does not preclude the UPR from taking additional steps to lower the medical
contribution costs to the University system by either renegotiating existing terms of the
agreement; restructuring the beneficiary’s medical contribution structure (i.e. gradual reduction
of the UPR’s expense contribution); or voluntarily joining the central government’s medical plan
group through the Act 95 process. All options are under consideration. This initiative could
provide annual savings between $12 million to $40 million.
Procurement: As part of the newly established PMO, the University will dedicate specialized
resources to transform its procurement process and infrastructure, similar to the procurement
initiatives being conducted in the Central Government. The University is expected to realize
approximately $14.34 million in annual savings, which represents a 9% savings target of total
addressable spending7.
These measures, part of the UPR’s Fiscal Plan, will provide the necessary independence from
the Central Government to provide long term sustainability to the Institution. Aside from the
measures mentioned previously, there are two (2) significant initiatives or matters that will be
addressed and that are currently under evaluation: (i) Dealing with the Unfunded Pension
Liability and (ii) Addressing the possibility of modifying the UPR’s current municipal debt load
and the corresponding debt service.
7 Based on benchmarks conducted on non-personnel procurement measures, FOMB targets
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Restructuring Pension System
The UPR is committed to the necessary reforms to its pension system and intends to do so in a
collaborative effort with the FOMB and other University work groups. Several analyses have
been performed as directed by the Retirement Committee of the UPR Governing Board and by
the Retirement System. Contrary to other Puerto Rico defined benefit plans, the UPR’s has a
funding ratio of over 40% as per the actuarial report for the year ended June 30, 2018. This
peculiarity may allow for implementation of measures that will increase its funding to a level in
which it could then be advisable to proceed with the freeze and conversion required by the
Board in a less costly way, and within the five-year timeline.
A local firm has been already engaged to carry-out an independent evaluation of several
alternatives under consideration, including but not limited to the one suggested by the Board.
The firm will serve as liaison between the Board of Trustees and the Retirement System of the
UPR to attain the most feasible reform of the Pension Plan.
A sixteen-week work plan has been developed to undertake a thorough evaluation of certain
studies performed and to oversee other operational, administrative and cash flow aspects of the
UPR’s Pension System; all leading towards the most responsible reform of the Pension System.
The UPR expects to have a defined action plan by the end of the first quarter of calendar year
2019.
Restructuring of Debt
Pursuant to PROMESA, the UPR has access to different mechanisms to restructure its
outstanding debt. At present, UPR has executed a forbearance agreement and is not in default.
This forbearance will expire in June 2019. Within this timeframe, UPR expects to engage
creditors to evaluate equitable restructuring alternatives.
UPR Revenue Bonds P&Q
Principal

Interest

Total Debt Service

2019

23,115,000

18,862,875

41,977,875

2020

24,270,000

17,678,250

41,948,250

2021

25,480,000

16,434,500

41,914,500

2022

26,760,000

15,128,500

41,888,500

2023

28,095,000

13,757,125

41,852,125

2024

29,505,000

12,317,125

41,822,125

2025

30,975,000

10,805,125

41,780,125

2026

20,555,000

9,516,875

30,071,875

2027

21,585,000

8,463,375

30,048,375

2028

22,660,000

7,357,250

30,017,250

2029

23,790,000

6,196,000

29,986,000
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2030

24,985,000

4,976,625

29,961,625

2031

12,795,000

4,032,125

16,827,125

2032

13,435,000

3,376,375

16,811,375

2033

14,110,000

2,687,750

16,797,750

2034

14,815,000

1,964,625

16,779,625

2035

15,555,000

1,205,375

16,760,375

2036

16,330,000

408,250

16,738,250

Total

$388,815,000

$155,168,125

$543,983,125

UPR Plaza Universitaria - AFICA Bonds
Principal

Interest

Total Debt Service

2019

2,725,000

1,487,141

4,212,141

2020

2,880,000

2,821,000

5,701,000

2021

3,020,000

2,677,000

5,697,000

2022

3,175,000

2,526,000

5,701,000

2023

3,330,000

2,367,250

5,697,250

2024

3,500,000

2,200,750

5,700,750

2025

3,675,000

2,025,750

5,700,750

2026

3,855,000

1,842,000

5,697,000

2027

4,050,000

1,649,250

5,699,250

2028

4,255,000

1,446,750

5,701,750

2029

4,465,000

1,234,000

5,699,000

2030

4,690,000

1,010,750

5,700,750

2031

4,925,000

776,250

5,701,250

2032

5,170,000

530,000

5,700,000

2033

5,430,000

271,500

5,701,500

Total

$59,145,000

$24,865,391

$84,010,391
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Reporting, Controls and Oversight
In order to properly demonstrate the progress, the University has achieved, an appropriate
reporting and control infrastructure needs to be implemented. The current administration is
aware of the legacy issues the University has had in its reporting functions, including financial
statements, budget to actual reporting, and implementation reporting. As part of the newly
established PMO office, the University has engaged external advisors to provide the necessary
support in order to develop a systematic infrastructure and controls that will effectively provide
on-time reporting. Initial / interim reports are currently being distributed to the FOMB, including
monthly cash flow balances and movement reports.
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SINGLE AUDIT
The show cause report must include evidence of: (3) an annual independent audit confirming
financial viability with evidence of follow-up on any concerns cited in the audit’s accompanying
management letter (Standard VI);
UPR Central Administration Response
The University of Puerto Rico engages and undergoes an annual independent audit in order to
confirm its financial sustainability and the adequacy of its accounting procedures.
Approximately over the last two decades, the University’s annual independent audit has been
conducted by Ernst & Young, one of the largest professional services firms in the world and one
of the “Big Four” accounting firms. The financial reporting entity consists of the University and
its four Component Units, which are legally separate organizations for which the University is
financially accountable. Namely, these component units are Desarrollos Universitarios, Inc.,
Servicios Médicos Universitarios, Inc., University of Puerto Rico Parking System, Inc., and
Materials Characterization Center, Inc. The University, as a public corporation of the
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico uses a fiscal year end date of June 30 to comprise its 12-month
accounting periods. Independent certified public accountants also conduct an annual audit of
each of the University’s four Component Unit financial statements before they consolidate into
the reporting entity. The accounting and reporting policies of the University conform to
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, as applicable to
governmental entities, specifically the Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB), the
standards setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting
principles.
As mentioned, the University prepares its financial statements in accordance with GASB
standards and uses its financial statement disclosures to include key financial reporting ratios
and debt ratings. The University’s set of basic financial statements include the following:
Statement of Net Position (Deficit), Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net
Position, Statement of Cash Flows, and Notes to the Basic Financial Statements, as well as
other required supplementary information and supplemental schedules.
Management acknowledges its substandard historical financial reporting record in providing
timely financial information in the form of audited financial statements. Nevertheless, the
auditor’s report issued in connection with audits for those historical financial statements have
consistently stated unqualified audit opinions assuring that the financial statements present
fairly, in all material respects, the University’s financial position, results of operations, and cash
flows in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. This conclusion may be
expressed only when the auditor has formed such an opinion, based on an audit performed in
accordance with Generally Accepted Auditing Standards, and financial records indicate
accurately the University’s financial condition, in compliance with accounting standards.
Despite that an unqualified audit opinion has been historically issued in the University’s financial
statements, most recently an explanatory paragraph has been added to the auditor’s standard
report. While such an explanatory paragraph does not affect the unqualified categorization of
the audit opinion, it includes the University’s ability to continue as an ongoing concern. The
primary reason to support the auditor determination is based on the University’s high
dependence on the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico to finance its operations. Given the financial
deterioration of the Commonwealth and its potential inability to continue to provide subsidies, it
raises substantial doubt about the continuance of operations of the University.
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The auditor's ongoing concern determination was included for the first time in the University’s
audited financial statements for fiscal year 2015, issued on September 7, 2016, thus
approximately 28 months ago. The University has continued to accomplish its mission and its
audited financial statements for fiscal year 2017 and 2016 showed substantial unrestricted cash
of approximately $289 million, and $181 million, respectively; and all the University’s required
debt service ratios complied with debt service covenants. Additionally, year-to-date records
show unrestricted cash of approximately $240 million, thus consistently keeping up with large
amounts of cash and hence liquidity levels.
Notwithstanding, management has plans to address any potential liquidity situation and
continue providing services. As such, the University has revenue generation and expense
reduction measures aimed at ameliorating the reduction in the Commonwealth’s appropriations
to the University, which among others, include:
▪

Increase in tuition cost: A gradual increase in the undergraduate student cost from $57
per credit to $140 per credit by fiscal year 2023, and a gradual increase in the graduate
student average annual tuition from $3,699 per student in fiscal year 2018 to $6,617 per
student by fiscal year 2023.

▪

Transformational enhancements:
o

A leaner administrative structure (keeping open the actual eleven campuses),
driven by a reduction of redundant expenses, academic optimizations, and
headcount reduction by attrition, coupled with reductions in a variety of employee
fringe benefits such as Christmas bonus, a restructuring of the employersponsored medical insurance plan, and a restructuring of the University’s defined
benefit pension plan structure. Given the complexity of the University’s financial
statements, which includes 11 institutional units, the preparation and submission
of the financial statements have been delayed for most of the last 15 years.
Initially, the migration from the legacy system to ORACLE was a major challenge,
which has been intensified due to contemporary events. Events which took place
during the past two years include:
▪

the student stoppage which interrupted the operations of all campuses for
93 days, but less in other cases. This occurred during the second
semester of the 2016-2017 academic year; and,

▪

the operation interruptions and prolonged problems with electrical support
systems and wireless communications due to the damages caused by
hurricanes Irma and María during September 2017 thru the early months
of calendar year 2018. After the stoppage ended, an extended deadline
for submission was granted by the U.S. Department of Education for the
annual audited financial statements fiscal years 2016 and 2017. The first
deadline was March 30, 2018. The University was able to comply with the
extended deadline for submission of the financial statements for fiscal
year 2016, as they were finally issued on March 29, 2018 and its related
compliance audit (Single Audit) on May 15, 2018.

The audited financial statements for fiscal year 2017 were to be issued by January 2, 2019 and
were finally issued on January 14, 2019. Despite the fact that the University was not able to
submit its fiscal year 2017 Single Audit Report by December 30, 2018, it becomes relevant to
highlight that the US OMB had issued an Administrative Relief for Grantees Impacted by
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Hurricanes Harvey, Irma and María. This relief allows submission of the fiscal year 2017 Single
Audit by March 30th, 2019 (See: Appendix 6). Currently, the Single Audit is in its final phase
and in the auditor’s best estimate, it will be issued within the next few weeks.
The 2017 auditors’ report includes the “Report on Internal Control and on Compliance”. Such
section contains an internal control over financial reporting deficiency Number 2017-001,
Financial Statement Close Process, deemed to be a material weakness in the University’s
internal controls. The deficiency states that the University has multiple audit/post-closing
entries, the compilation and reconciliation of data are not completed on a timely basis, and
certain institutional units are not being effective and efficient in identifying accounting errors.
Management acknowledges the problem and will increase its human resource capacity by
bringing outsourced personnel to aid institutional units with the analysis and reconciliation of
accounting differences and in the development of accounting estimates. Also, it is committed to
improve its annual closing process by designing and implementing effective monitoring controls
over the financial information. As such, general ledger accounts will be reviewed on a timely
basis and properly supported with reconciliations, roll-forward schedules, and other appropriate
documentation.
To this end, the UPR management has taken the following steps that will help bring up-to-speed
the reporting timeliness issue:
▪

Establishment of a financial and accounting closing process calendar;

▪

Identify key complex areas to reduce potential process holdups;

▪

Development of a reporting matrix to follow-up on progress;

▪

Set-up personnel at each institutional unit to serve as audit coordinator;

▪

Enable an on-line centralized repository for all requested documentation;

▪

Offer periodical trainings to its finance and accounting personnel in all institutional units;

▪

Hold frequent status meetings with institutional units, including Chancellors;

▪

Perform frequent status meetings with institutional unit finance directors, and when
necessary, include the unit chancellor; and,

▪

Require, on a weekly basis, that the external auditors provide a listing of outstanding
matters to ensure a smoother process.

These measures will ensure that all units respond on a timely basis and in an effective manner
to the Central Administration. (See: Appendix 7 & 8). The University has made progress
towards its financial reporting goals and will continue to make substantial investment in
resources that will help bring up-to-speed the existing timeliness gap.
As part of management’s plan to continue to close the existing gap in its financial reporting
timeliness, address the above described material weakness issued by our external auditors, and
modify its processes so as to include a reporting schedule that will preclude or minimize
potential and recurring tardiness in the future. As such, the University will perform the following
actions that will help distribute activities more evenly throughout the year, to include:
▪

Recording and analyzing activities throughout the year: This process will include
quarterly accounting closings to ensure the ongoing completeness and accuracy of the
data it collects; currently, this process is being performed thoroughly only on an annual
basis.
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▪

Closing and financial statement preparation processing: Due the fact that the University
includes component units as part of its financial reporting entity, there needs to be early
and ongoing communication with those units to ensure that the University receives all
the information it needs.

▪

Contracting for professional services: This process will be revised to ensure it is
performed in an expedite manner. This includes the procurement for the services of an
independent auditor, as well as those for professional services, other than auditing.

The resulting gains from the enhanced processes will endeavor to mirror best industry and
financial reporting practices so as to firmly uphold the University’s MSCHE affiliation
requirements, while fully complying with qualitative characteristics of an accounting system that
makes quality and timely information available to all stakeholders.

27

Show Cause Report
January 25, 2019
UPR-Cayey

FISCAL MANAGEMENT
(4) a record of responsible fiscal management, has a prepared budget for the current year, and
undergoes an external financial audit on an annual basis (Standard VI and Requirement of
Affiliation 11)
UPR-Cayey Response
The management of the allocated budget follows the UPR Bylaws and municipal, state, federal
and institutional regulations. The diversity of bylaws and procedures also regulates the
utilization of the external funds. The UPR Governing Board determines budget allocations for
each system unit upon the recommendation of the President and the University Board. The
Central Administration Budget Office issues a general guideline for the distribution of resources
and discusses the budgetary outlook with the chancellors and their respective budget directors.
For FY19, Certification 118, 2017 of the UPR Board of Governors, assigned the budget to each
unit of the UPR. UPR Cayey budget totals $31,826,974, a reduction of 5.09% ($1,708,208)
compared to FY18. On July 30, 2018, the UPR Cayey Administrative Board approved the FY19
Budget allocation proposal presented by the Budget Office (See: Appendix 9). The adjustments
to address the budget reductions came from the savings of retiring personnel and their fringe
benefits. The academic offer and services to students were prioritized, in compliance with our
institutional mission and our commitment to academic excellence.
The following figures represent the budget allocation and budget rationale for FY19 as approved
by the Administrative Board.
Budget Breakdown by Budget Areas FY19
Budget Area

Amount

Chancellor's Office

$2,509,395

7.88%

Academic Affairs

12,686,344

39.86%

Administrative Affairs

5,710,209

17.94%

Students Affairs

1,032,812

3.25%

Employer contribution and Benefits

8,062,862

25.33%

Utilities

1,619,153

5.09%

67,861

0.21%

138,338

0.43%

$31,826,974

100.00%

Recovered Indirect Cost
Technology Fee
Total
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The UPR Cayey allocation process is determined by planning and assessment results and
distributes its yearly budget based on annual strategic priorities, assessment results and
institutional effectiveness of the prior year. All academic and administrative needs are
discussed and submitted through each of the Deans to the Chancellor and translated into
budget allocations to ensure fulfillment of institutional missions and goals and the improvement
of academic and administrative operations as well.
The budget institutional priority is based on the number of students enrolled, the number of
courses and sessions needed, and the number of faculty and non-faculty staff available. Also,
the budget takes into account the institution infrastructure, institutional effectiveness indicators
and services provided to students.
As part of our sound budget control and assessment process, the institution performs quarterly
budget forecasts which allows us to identify areas of need and also possible economies. We are
currently working on the second quarterly report. These forecasts are discussed in regular
meetings with the Chancellor and Staff. The economies identified are redistributed to attend to
unforeseen actions or to fund projects that advance the goals and objectives of the institution.
Also, the Chancellor and Deans have made use of a variety of mechanisms to keep the
university community informed about the institution's financial constraints as well as initiatives to
manage the budget according to institutional policies.
Although the responsibility of performing internal audits, coordinating and issuing the UPR
system’s Financial Statements lies within Central Administration, the UPR Cayey prioritizes the
delivery of all the information on time as required by the external or internal auditors. The
institution’s appointed Audit Coordinator has the responsibility of ensuring that the information
requested by external and internal auditors is accurate and delivered on time. As a public
institution, we are subject to audits from the Puerto Rico Office of the Comptroller, sponsor
agencies and internal auditors, among others.
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RELATED ENTITY
(5) certification by the related entity that it recognizes the Commission's compliance
requirements and will ensure that responsibilities of the related entity are fulfilled, including
making freely available to the Commission accurate, fair, and complete information through
disclosure of information required by the Commission to carry out its accrediting responsibilities
(Related Entities Policy; Requirement of Affiliation 14).
A Governing Board, acting as a related entity (See: Appendix 1) oversees the system’s general
functioning, while making decisions about the institution’s finances, governance, budget,
recruitment practices and compensation policies.
TEACH-OUT PLAN AND AGREEMENT POLICY AND PROCEDURES
As part of the documents that were developed to comply with the requirements of the MSCHE,
the UPR Cayey completed the Teach-Out Plan Proposal. Although the MSCHE indicated that
most of the sections on the teach-out document does not apply, since the institution is
accredited at the moment of submitting the documents, we included a description in those
sections. This document was worked using examples from other institutions that have had
experience with this process. The document is a plan that will guide the institution in case it has
to be implemented (See: UPR-Cayey Teach-Out Plan Proposal).
Conclusion
The University of Puerto Rico at Cayey has consistently followed up on and responded to all
procedures, reports, and actions requested and mandated by MSCHE requirements, policies,
and procedures, as well as demonstrating its forthright attempt at satisfying federal compliance
requirements to its best ability. The institution has been placed on show cause when despite
matters of Audited Financial Statements and Single Audits extend beyond the institution’s reach
and control, making compliance with these requirements dependent on the diligence of the
Central Administration and the Governing Board.
UPR-Cayey has offered, since 2010, responses and evidence regarding its internal
assessments, audits and financial compliance, along with evidence of disbursements of budget,
funding, and expenditures. Visiting teams have noted the following regarding our practices:
▪

Follow-Up Visit, September 12-16, 2010: At Cayey, the Team noted that the academic
dean, by means of a budget exercise, promoted conversations among department
heads regarding faculty personnel planning; the institutional research director and
budget director both successfully worked through objections by Central Administration
about how they wanted to link budget and planning; the budget director meets with
constituents; and the Team saw evidence of good collegiality (See: Appendix 10 ).

▪

Follow-Up Visit, September 7-9, 2011: While we applaud the excellent work conducted
in institutional assessment and assessment of student learning, we believe the institution
would benefit from more widely communicating their success stories to the general
campus constituency and external audiences (See: Appendix 11).
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▪

The University might also consider ways in which they can share their promising
practices with their assessment initiatives throughout the United States by for example
case studies or conference presentations.

▪

Self-Study Visit, April 2 – 5, 2017: The UPR-Cayey, like all the units of the UPR System,
has experienced challenging times associated with the ongoing financial crisis of the
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. These challenges have resulted in budget reductions for
several years. Up to now, UPR-Cayey has been able to develop mechanisms to
continue operating efficiently and fulfilling its mission under continued budget
constraints. (See: Appendix 12)

▪

Follow Visit September 10 to 13, 2017: Based on the review of the Monitoring Reports
submitted to the Middle States Commission on Higher Education on September 1, 2017;
their appendices, the interviews with representatives of the UPR Leadership, Academic
and Students Community, MSCHE Committee, all of the campuses on probation has
addressed the requirements and appears to be in compliance with Standard 3. (See:
Appendix 13)

▪

Follow Visit September 30 to October 3, 2018: The University has established criteria
for establishing budget priorities (enrollment, course and section needs, available faculty
and staff, infrastructure, student services, and KPIs). The budget planning and
monitoring process (developed in 2007) has been noted as a model for other institutions.
The institution engages in longitudinal tracking and analysis of the criteria and outcomes.
(See: Appendix 14)

CLOSING STATEMENT
The MSCHE statement regarding the purpose and commitment to accreditation states that “An
institution of higher education is a community dedicated to students, to the pursuit and
dissemination of knowledge, to the study and clarification of values, and to the advancement of
the society it serves. The MSCHE, through accreditation, mandates that its member institutions
meet rigorous and comprehensive standards, which are addressed in the context of the mission
of each institution and within the culture of ethical practices and institutional integrity expected of
accredited institutions. In meeting the quality standards of MSCHE accreditation, institutions
earn accredited status, and this permits them to state with confidence: “Our students are wellserved; society is well-served.”
A comprehensive analysis of UPR Cayey achievements, planning, budget, assessment and
continuous improvement processes, reaffirm that as an institution Our Students are and
Society is Well-Served and that we are fiscally responsible, as stated by the USDE Program
Participation Agreement, despite not being able to generate our own Audited Financial
Statements which have led to the MSCHE Show-Cause.
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Appendix 4

UPR Cayey Office og Planning and Development Prevention and Risk Assessment Plan in compliance with Strategic Plan rev. August 2011

1

Risk Assessment Plan based on the 2006-2019 UPR-Cayey Strategic Plan
Deanships and offices in charge of coordinating
and leading the initiative

Stratgeic Plan Cayey 2005-2019

M10,O2

M9,O7

Objective and Classification

O, R, E,
C

Deanships

Offices

Risk Assessment and Risk level (1= Low, 2= medium, 3=High)
Risk Factor

Risk prevention

Measurable Expected Outcome

Potential Impact of the Risk

2017-2018

2018-2019

2019-2020

2020-2021

2021-2022

Control Activity

Conclusions

Allocate the budget distribution to
institutional priorities, through a culture of
evaluation of fiscal opertaions, profile of
expenses and the tendencies in uses of the
budget to gurantee operations of the
University , its goals and objectives.

O

Chancellor's Office
Office of the Dean of
Academic Affairs
Office of the Dean of
Administration
Office of the Dean of
Students

Budget Office
Institutional
Assessment and
Research Office
Dean of Academic
Affairs
dean of Administration
Dean of Students

Budget reduction

Non-compliance with the Misison,
Goals and Objectives of UPR Cayey.

2

2

2

2

2

Analysis of expense tendencies , re-evaluation
of the budget assignment, identification of the
areas to reduce expenses, guaranteeing that
institutional priorities are met.

The deanships make use of assessment and of
the collaborative meetings to discuss expense
patterns and reach agreements about how to
best distribute the budget.

Analyze the restructuring of the instituttional areas to guarantee the
best operations and efficient use of instituttional resources to be
able to adjust to budget decreases.
Continue the analysis of fiscal tendencies to ensure compliance with
the Mission, Goals, and Objectives of UPR-Cayey, and the stratgeic
plan.

Design and execute a fundraising plan.

O

Chancellor's Office

Development and
Almuni Office

Lack of fundraising

Limited or reduced fundraising.

3

3

3

3

3

Prepare a fundraising plan.

Greater coordination is required between
offices like the Office of Social and Cultural
Activitiesand the Office of Ex-Alumni for
activity planning.
Development of database of alumni and
potential donors.

Incorporation of other offices in the planning of fundraising
activities.

Classification of Objectives: S-Strategic; O-Operational; R_reporting; C-Compliance Probability of Occuring/Level of Risk : 5 - A lot/High ; 3 - Little/Moderate; 0 - None/Low

Approved Fundraising Plan.

por Prof. Irmannette Torres-Lugo
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Disclaimer
▪ The Financial Oversight and Management Board for Puerto Rico (the “FOMB,” or “Oversight Board”) has formulated this New Fiscal Plan based on, among
other things, information obtained from the Puerto Rico Fiscal Agency and Financial Advisory Authority (“AAFAF”) and the University of Puerto Rico (“UPR”
and together with AAFAF, the “Government”).
▪ This document does not constitute an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, an examination of internal controls or
other attestation or review services in accordance with standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants or any other
organization. Accordingly, the Oversight Board cannot express an opinion or any other form of assurance on the financial statements or any financial or
other information or the internal controls of the Government and the information contained herein.
▪ This New Fiscal Plan is directed to the Governor and Legislature of Puerto Rico based on underlying data obtained from the Government. No
representations or warranties, express or implied, are made by the Oversight Board with respect to such information.
▪ Any statements and assumptions contained in this document, whether forward-looking or historical, are not guarantees of future performance and involve
certain risks, uncertainties, estimates and other assumptions made in this document. The economic and financial condition of the Government and its
instrumentalities is affected by various legal, financial, social, economic, environmental, governmental and political factors. These factors can be very
complex, may vary from one fiscal year to the next and are frequently the result of actions taken or not taken, not only by the Government, the Oversight
Board, and other third-party entities such as the government of the United States.
▪ Because of the uncertainty and unpredictability of these factors, their impact cannot be included in the assumptions contained in this document. Future
events and actual results may differ materially from any estimates, projections, or statements contained herein. Nothing in this document should be
considered as an express or implied commitment to do or take, or to refrain from taking, any action by the Oversight Board, the Government, or any
government instrumentality in the Government or an admission of any fact or future event. Nothing in this document shall be considered a solicitation,
recommendation or advice to any person to participate, pursue or support a particular course of action or transaction, to purchase or sell any security, or
to make any investment decision.
▪ By receiving this document, the recipient is deemed to have acknowledged the terms of these limitations. This document may contain capitalized terms
that are not defined herein, or may contain terms that are discussed in other documents or that are commonly understood. You should make no
assumptions about the meaning of capitalized terms that are not defined, and you should refer questions to the Oversight Board at
comments@oversightboard.pr.gov should clarification be required.
▪ This New Fiscal Plan is based on what the Oversight Board believes is the best information currently available to it. To the extent the Oversight Board
becomes aware of additional information after it certifies this New Fiscal Plan that the Oversight Board determines warrants a revision of this New Fiscal
Plan, the Oversight Board will so revise it.
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Executive Summary
The University of Puerto Rico (“UPR”) plays an essential role as the Island’s engine for economic and workforce
development. In many ways, the future of Puerto Rico depends on a vibrant and sustainable UPR. But sharp
reductions in population and Commonwealth subsidies – which previously have provided over 70% of UPR’s revenues
– demand significant, immediate changes to the core operating model of the UPR.

The FOMB strongly agrees with UPR’s Governing Board that the impending decline in Commonwealth subsidy poses
both challenges and opportunities for the University. Specifically, in the words of the President of the Governing
Board, it is an opportunity to build “a more efficient and less bureaucratic institution.” The reforms outlined in this
document, which center largely around improving operations and increasing revenues, are designed to do just that,
while maintaining the ability of all students to access and benefit from the improved university system.

The path to implementing these reforms will not be easy. They come at a time when the UPR is still recovering from
the damage of Hurricanes Irma and Maria and adjusting to multiple leadership transitions. The FOMB looks forward to
partnering the Government of Puerto Rico, the UPR Governing Board, and the UPR Administration in making the
transition to a ‘new status quo’ operating model – one that is both more efficient and effective – as seamless as
possible for the students, faculty, staff and communities who benefit from this vital institution.
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Executive Summary
•

Operational excellence. The New Fiscal Plan returns the system to a three campus “hub” model (in addition to the
Medical Science campus), whereby the footprint of secondary campuses are reduced, and shared services are
increasingly relied upon to drive down operating expenditures. The New Fiscal Plan calls for a ~10% reduction in
total operating disbursement by FY23 (excluding capital reinvestment and reconstruction costs) to be achieved
through both personnel and non-personnel reductions. However, the plan is not centered on cost reductions
alone. The consolidations of programs and services are designed to improve both student experience and
educational outcomes. For example, a compliance scan of UPR’s academic programs found many programs with
graduation rates below 25%. A critical goal of the New Fiscal Plan is the re-focusing of resources on the strengths
of the system – making sure students are receiving both an affordable and high quality education.

•

Revenue enhancement. The New Fiscal Plan makes every effort to minimize the increase of tuition and fees that
could jeopardize affordability and access to quality higher education on the Island. It does so by first maximizing
opportunities to increase revenue from non-tuition sources: federal grants and awards, IP and patent
monetization, and ancillary service fees for providing training to external institutions. To the extent tuition
increases are required, the New Fiscal Plan calls for implementing a need-based scholarship policy alongside
increases in the cost per credit and related fees. The revised UPR scholarship program outlined in this plan
ensures all students with demonstrated need (the vast majority of UPR students) are able to cover the cost of
tuition and mandatory fees with federal award funds, and further ensures that the neediest students are able to
leverage a portion of their federal award to cover other costs of attendance. Even for full-paying students, the
tuition increases contemplated in this plan allow UPR to remain among the most affordable public 4-year
university systems in the U.S., and the most affordable option to students on the Island.
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UPR’s Executive Summary
▪ The University of Puerto Rico (UPR) submitted a Fiscal Plan on August 1, 2017. Said plan was reviewed by the Financial
Oversight and Management Board (FOMB), which requested further details as part of the iterative process between FOMB and
UPR Team (including AAFAF and its advisors). This process was interrupted due to Hurricane Maria’s impact.

▪ Since then, the UPR has focused on:
– Reopening campuses and facilities after sustaining significant impact to its campuses
– Implementing expense reduction measures throughout the central administration and its units
– Elaborating on Fiscal Plan 1.0 proposed measures
– Adjusting its projections according to current circumstances and macro projections
– Operating within the constraints of the initial appropriation reductions of $201MM for FY 2017-18
▪ Main variations embedded in the numbers presented herein are:
– Gradual decrease in student population
– Increase in tuition beginning in FY19
– Fiscal impact from program consolidation and headcount reduction
– Disaster related inflows
▪ Other variations are a product of further analysis and dialogue among key stakeholders in the system. For example:
– Cost of trainings and seminars are net of cost (~40% operating cost included)
– Adjusted exemption reductions
– Adjusted graduate tuition costs
– Further adjustment of marginal benefits to its employees (faculty and non faculty)
▪ UPR subsequently submitted a Fiscal Plan on August 20, 2018. Following a notice of violation from the FOMB, the UPR
submitted a modified Plan on September 7, 2018. Both versions, however, were non-complaint with FOMB requirements. Thus,
the FOMB has moved forward to certify its own Fiscal Plan for UPR
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Guiding Principles of the UPR Fiscal Plan
1. Seeks to meet the fiduciary responsibility of the University with Puerto Rico while maintaining institutional integrity
and financial stability.
2. Protects the necessary human, financial, technical, and capital resources needed to support the sustained
achievement of the UPR mission, considering the UPR provides an essential service.
3. Centers on the strengthening of the diversity and uniqueness that characterizes the UPR System for the successful
attainment of the UPR 2017-2022 Strategic Plan.
4. Recognizes the complexities of the external environment aiming to position itself as a key contributor to the
development of local economies.
5. Aims to champion social, cultural, and economic growth in alignment with the needs and priorities of the private
and public sectors while strengthening the academic experience.
6. Commits to its fiscal responsibility with specific revenues and expenditures measures to support the achievement of
its strategic sustainable management goal.

7. Nurtures the innovation and transformation of academic endeavors, research and the creation of knowledge, as well
as its technological structures.
8. Reinforces institutional capacities without affecting access, social responsibility, quality of services and professional
and vocational success of its constituents.
9. Prioritizes administrative and academic transformations that are guided by efficiency and
effectiveness criteria.
10. Allows for the development of capacity and creativity among teaching and non-teaching personnel to implement the
necessary changes.
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Our Commitment to Puerto Rico

UPR Strategic Plan 2017-2022
Educational
Environment

Research and
Creative Work

To enhance and
differentiate
academic programs
according to higher
learning trends

To increase sources
of external funding
and to secure
patents

Service to
Diverse
Communities
To promote growth
in local economies
and to value
cultural and artistic
expressions

Sustainability
To attain
operational
efficiencies and to
secure fiscal
stability

STUDENT
SUCCESS
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Organic Law

Founded in 1903

Mission

The University of Puerto Rico
(the University) is a state
supported university system
created by Law No. 1
of January 20, 1966,
“Law of the University of
Puerto Rico”
(“Act No. 1”), as amended.

▪ To serve the people of Puerto Rico and contribute to
the development and enjoyment of the fundamental,
ethical and esthetic values of Puerto Rican culture,
and committed to the ideals of a democratic society

▪ To advance its mission, the University strives to
provide high quality education and create new
knowledge in the Arts, Sciences and Technology
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Governing Board
The University is a public corporation of the Government of Puerto Rico governed by a
fourteen-member Governing Board composed of:

Eight members
appointed by
the Governor
of Puerto Rico
and confirmed
by the Senate
of Puerto Rico

Two
tenured
professors

▪ The President of the University, appointed
by the Board of Governors, is the Chief
Executive Officer (CEO) of the Institution

Two fulltime
students

The Secretary
of the
Department of
Education of
Puerto Rico
becomes exofficio member

One ex-officio
member of the
Fiscal Agency
and Financial
Advisory
Authority

▪ The Chancellors, appointed by the Board of
Governors following the recommendation of the
President of the University, under the President’s
oversight
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Organization and Governance

Governing Board

President

Río Piedras
Campus

Mayagüez
University
Campus

Medical
Science
Campus

UPR
Aguadilla

UPR
Arecibo

UPR
Bayamón

University Board

UPR
Carolina

UPR
Cayey

UPR
Humacao

UPR
Ponce

UPR
Utuado
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Academic Offerings Across the UPR System
Undergraduate

Graduate

▪ 38 Associate Degrees
▪ 239 Baccalaureates
▪ 200 Articulated Transfer Programs

▪ 6 First Professional Level Degrees: J.D., M.D., D.M.D.,

between campuses leading to
Baccalaureate Degrees

▪
▪
▪
▪
▪

PharmD and
Au.D.
15 Graduate Certificates
119 Masters
34 Ph. D.’s and Professional Doctorates
41 Medicine and Dental Medicine Residency Programs

Undergraduate
694 degree granting academic
programs and professional
certification programs in:
▪ Arts
▪ Sciences
▪ Business
▪ Engineering
▪ Technology

58% of academic programs
are susceptible to
professional accreditation.
Of these 87% are already
accredited.

Examples:
The Business Administration School at
the Río Piedras Campus is accredited by
the Association to Advance Collegiate
Schools of Business (AACSB), making it
the first public business school to
achieve this distinction in the
Caribbean Region.
Less than 5% of the 13,000 business
schools worldwide have achieved this
prestigious recognition.
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List of Specialized Accreditations
▪
▪
▪
▪
▪
▪
▪
▪
▪
▪
▪
▪
▪
▪
▪
▪
▪
▪
▪
▪
▪
▪
▪
▪
▪
▪

ABET – CAC
ABET - ETAC
Accreditation Commission for Midwifery Education
Accreditation Commission for Programs in Hospitality
Administration (ACPHA)
Accreditation Council for Business Schools and Programs (ACBSP)
Accreditation Council for Education in Nutrition and Dietetics
Accreditation Council for Pharmacy Education
Accreditation Council for Occupational Therapy Education, American
Occupational Therapy Association
Accrediting Council on Education in Journalism and Mass
Communication (ACEJAC)
American Alliance of Museums
American Bar Association
American Chemical Society
American College of Nurse Midwives
American Dental Association
American Physical Therapy Association
American Psychological Association
American Society of Cytopathology
American Speech-Language-Hearing Association
American Veterinary Medical Association
Association of American Laws Schools
Association of College and Research Libraries, American
Libraries Association
Association to Advance Collegiate Schools of Business
Commission on Accreditation for Health Informatics and Information
Management Education
Commission on Accreditation of Healthcare Management
Education

▪
▪
▪
▪
▪
▪
▪
▪
▪
▪
▪
▪
▪
▪
▪
▪
▪
▪
▪
▪
▪

Commission on Accreditation of Ophthalmic Medical Programs
Commission on Collegiate Nursing Education
Computing Accreditation Commission, ABET, Inc.
Council for the Accreditation of Educator Preparation.
Council on Accreditation of Nurse Anesthesia Educational Programs
Council on Education for Public Health
Council on Rehabilitation Education
Council on Social Work Education
Engineering Technology Accreditation Commission, ABET, Inc.
International Association of Counseling Services
Joint Commission on Allied Health Personnel in Ophthalmology and
Commission on Accreditation of Allied Health Education Programs
Joint Review Committee on Education in Radiologic Technology
Joint Review Committee on Educational Programs in Nuclear Medicine
Technology
Liaison Committee on Medical Education
National Accrediting Agency for Clinical Laboratory Sciences
National Architectural Accrediting Board
National Association for the Education of Young Children
National Association of Schools of Public Affairs and Administration
National League for Nursing Accrediting Commission
National Council for Accreditation of Teacher Education (NCATE)
Planning Accreditation Board
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Student Enrollment
FY’13

FY’14

FY’15

FY’16

FY’17

FY’18

57,482

57,772

57,571

59,924

61,748

58,402

12,453

13,097

13,103

13,221

12,845

13,121

10,849

10,819

11,240

12,245

12,384

10,270

12,383

12,514

13,024

14,295

14,739

12,010

15,599

15,528

16,127

17,798

18,621

18,433

Total Enrollment

Capacity

New Enrollment

Admitted

1st Alternative
Applications
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Hurricane Irma and Maria Impact to the UPR1
Estimated Reconstruction Costs by Campus / Unit ($000’s)
35,584
30,032

13,503

12,226
6,731
2,982

3,683

2,830

1,121

Carolina

2,672
654

423

Arecibo

Cayey

Bayamon Humacao

Ponce

RCM

Rio
Aguadilla
Piedras

RUM

Utuado

Admin.

1 Total estimated damages as of December 2017 ascend to approximately $132mm
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UPR Fiscal Plan Baseline
($000's)
FY’18 –
Base

FY'18 –
Maria Adj

FY'19

FY'20

FY'21

FY’22

FY’23

Total Central Government Appropriations

$678,321

$654,868

$645,909

$559,874

$488,850

$465,861

$441,861

Total Operating Receipts

$303,165

$254,316

$276,469

$270,379

$264,461

$258,710

$253,122

Total Intra-Government Receipts

$285,814

$242,942

$285,814

$285,814

$285,814

$285,814

$285,814

-

40,000

40,000

20,000

-

-

-

$1,267,300

$1,192,126

$1,248,193

$1,136,067

$1,039,124

$1,010,385

$980,796

Disaster Relief Receipts
Insurance Proceeds
Total Receipts
Total Operating Disbursements
Total Disaster-related Disbursements

($1,160,063) ($1,115,825) ($1,151,655) ($1,145,629) ($1,139,783) ($1,134,113) ($1,134,113)
-

(40,000)

(40,000)

(20,000)

-

-

-

Capital Expenditures

(61,790)

(28,077)

(30,895)

(30,895)

(30,895)

(30,895)

(30,895)

Equipment

(11,553)

(11,553)

(11,553)

(11,553)

(11,553)

(11,553)

(11,553)

($74,559)

($74,559)

(76,376)

(79,598)

(82,570)

(85,108)

(87,744)

Pensions Payment
Total Disbursements

($1,307,965) ($1,270,014) ($1,310,479) ($1,287,675) ($1,264,801) ($1,261,669) ($1,264,305)

Net Operating Surplus/Deficit

($40,666)

($77,888)

($62,287)

($151,608)

($225,677)

($251,284)

($283,509)

Contractual Debt Service

($48,255)

($48,255)

($48,256)

($48,249)

($48,259)

($48,252)

($48,261)

Reserve/Deficit (Post Contractual Debt Service)

($88,921)

($126,144)

($110,543)

($199,856)

($273,936)

($299,536)

($331,769)
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UPR Fiscal Plan Summary of Measures1
($000’s) Measure
FY’19

FY’20

FY’21

FY’22

FY’23

Revenue Enhancement Measures
Adjustment to Undergraduate Student Tuition

52,470

62,849

74,356

86,937

94,938

5,861

8,168

10,073

12,281

11,913

Federal Grants & Contracts; Patents

(3,790)

6,000

11,500

17,000

22,000

Reduction in Tuition Exemptions

27,538

25,141

22,641

19,986

19,416

Adjustment to Graduate Student Tuition

16,798

17,534

18,269

18,984

19,393

Implementation Expense on Training & Tutoring

(8,000)

(8,000)

(8,000)

(8,000)

(8,000)

Total Revenue Enhancement Measures

90,876

111,692

128,840

147,188

159,659

Headcount Reduction & Attrition

37,906

62,232

90,848

96,934

97,898

Adjustment in Marginal Benefits

9,003

28,958

27,065

26,698

26,640

-

2,675

10,700

10,700

10,700

7,476

7,476

7,476

7,476

7,476

Savings from Pension Benefit Reduction

-

10,700

10,700

10,700

10,700

Employer Pension Match

-

(4,700)

(4,600)

(4,600)

(4,600)

Increased Contribution to Improve Retirement System Solvency

-

(6,000)

(6,100)

(6,100)

(6,100)

Total Expense Measures
Transformation Plan Implementation Expense

54,386
(10,001)

101,342
(10,016)

136,089
(5,016)

141,808
(5,016)

142,714
(3,346)

Total Measures Impact

135,261

203,018

259,913

283,980

299,027

Adjustment to Dues & Charges

Expense Measures

Centralized Procurement & Contract Renegotiation
Elimination of Christmas Bonus

1. Although the FOMB does not consider and has not considered anything in the New UPR Fiscal Plan as a “recommendation” pursuant to Section 205(a), to the
16
extent that the Government of Puerto Rico or UPR considers or has considered anything in this section a “recommendation” pursuant to Section 205(a), the
FOMB hereby incorporates it into the New UPR Fiscal Plan pursuant to Section 201(b)(1)(K).
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UPR Fiscal Plan considering Measures
($000's)
FY’18 –
Base

FY'18 –
Maria Adj

FY'19

FY'20

FY'21

FY’22

FY’23

Total Central Government Appropriations

$678,321

$654,868

$645,909

$559,874

$488,850

$465,861

$441,861

Total Operating Receipts

$303,165

$254,316

$379,636

$385,071

$391,300

$398,898

$400,781

Total Intra-Government Receipts

$283,969

$242,942

$281,524

$290,814

$295,814

$300,814

$305,814

-

40,000

40,000

20,000

-

-

-

Disaster Relief Receipts
Insurance Proceeds
Total Receipts

$1,265,455

$1,192,126

$1,347,069

$1,255,759

$1,175,964

$1,165,572 $1,148,455

Operating Disbursements:
Total Operating Disbursements
Total Disaster-related Disbursements

($1,160,063) ($1,115,825) ($1,115,270) ($1,062,311) ($1,016,741) ($1,005,352) ($1,002,776)
-

(40,000)

(40,000)

(20,000)

-

-

-

Capital Expenditures

(61,790)

(28,077)

(30,895)

(30,895)

(30,895)

(30,895)

(30,895)

Equipment

(11,553)

(11,553)

(11,553)

(11,553)

(11,553)

(11,553)

(11,553)

Pensions Payment

(74,559)

(74,559)

(76,376)

(79,598)

(82,570)

(85,108)

(87,744)

Total Disbursements
Net Operating Surplus/Deficit

($1,233,406) ($1,270,014) ($1,274,095) ($1,204,357) ($1,141,759) ($1,132,908) ($1,132,968)
$32,049

($77,888)

$72,974

$51,402

$34,205

$32,665

$15,487

Contractual Debt Service

($48,255)

($48,255)

($48,256)

($48,249)

($48,259)

($48,252)

($48,261)

Reserve/Deficit (Post Contractual Debt Service)

($16,206)

($126,144)

$24,718

$3,154

($14,054)

($15,587)

($32,774)
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UPR Fiscal Plan Summary of Tuition Adjustment
FY’18

FY'19

FY'20

FY'21

FY’22

FY’23

Student Population – based on Revised Fiscal Plan for PR Macros
51,777

48,830

47,365

45,944

44,566

43,229

6,043

6,230

6,043

5,862

5,686

5,515

57,820

55,060

53,408

51,806

50,252

48,744

Undergraduate Population

Graduate Population

Total Student Population
Tuition Credit Adjustment
FY’18
Undergraduate Students Cost
per Credit
Graduate Students Average
Annual Tuition1

57

3,699

Gross – excludes any UPR or external scholarship
115

124

134

145

157

6,358

6,561

6,770

6,986

7,209

1 Average tuition per student has changed from previous certified Fiscal Plan due to different proportional split of graduate students across the 3 campuses. No change in credit value for
graduate students was included in this update of the Fiscal Plan
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UPR Fiscal Plan Summary of Tuition Adjustment
($ Per Student)

FY’18

FY'19

FY'20

FY'21

FY’22

FY’23

Annual Maintenance Fee
Technology Maintenance Fee
Laboratory Rights
Graduation Rights
Other Maintenance Rights
Admission Application
Re-Admission
Transfer to other Institutions
Transfer with the UPR System
Transcripts & Certificates
Document Duplicates
Change in Faculty
ID Card
Charges for late tuition

47.00
25.00
33.00
27.00
67.00
20.00
33.00
33.00
20.00
1.35
1.35
20.00
5.00
13.00

47.00
25.00
100.00
80.00
67.00
30.00
35.00
50.00
25.00
5.00
5.00
20.00
10.00
20.00

75.00
25.00
100.00
80.00
67.00
30.00
35.00
50.00
25.00
5.00
5.00
20.00
10.00
20.00

100.00
25.00
100.00
80.00
67.00
30.00
35.00
50.00
25.00
5.00
5.00
20.00
10.00
20.00

100.00
50.00
100.00
80.00
67.00
30.00
35.00
50.00
25.00
5.00
5.00
20.00
10.00
20.00

100.00
50.00
100.00
80.00
67.00
30.00
35.00
50.00
25.00
5.00
5.00
20.00
10.00
20.00

Summer Maintenance Fee

-

50.00

50.00

50.00

50.00

50.00

Charges for partial drop in courses

-

10.00

10.00

10.00

10.00

10.00

Charges for full drop in courses

-

15.00

15.00

15.00

15.00

15.00

Repetition of courses

-

20.00

20.00

20.00

20.00

20.00

Additional Fees
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UPR Fiscal Plan Summary of Means Based Scholarship Expenditures
FY'19

FY'20

FY'21

FY’22

FY’23

Scholarship Expenditure ($000’s)
Expected Family Contribution or EFC

% of Total
Students

0 -499
500 -999
1000 -1499
1500 -1999
2000 -2499
2500 -2999
3000 -3499
3500 -3850
≥ 3851

50.32%
3.65%
3.57%
2.99%
2.73%
2.07%
1.61%
0.93%
2.14%

No Pell Grant Qualification

30.00%

Average FY’19-23
Scholarship Increase
0.00%
8.00%
27.00%
50.40%
74.10%
95.80%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
0.00%

Total Scholarship Fund

425
1,078
1,650
1,643
1,274
740
1,693
9,016

702
1,293
1,826
1,850
1,435
833
1,906
-

996
1,517
2,009
2,001
1,600
929
2,126
-

182
1,299
1,744
2,199
2,123
1,770
1,028
2,352
-

603
1,601
1,953
2,378
2,233
1,946
1,130
2,586
-

10,438

12,043

13,907

15,596

1,594
1,094
1,009
1,008
1,008
979
479
129
(521)

1,411
1,020
1,018
1,017
1,015
1,013
578
228
(422)

1,209
1,079
1,024
1,018
1,018
1,007
680
330
(320)

1,008
1,069
1,045
1,021
1,025
1,001
809
459
(191)

Amount of Pell Grant Award Retained After Tuition & Fees that Can Be Applied to Other Costs of Attendance
Expected Family Contribution or EFC
500
1000
1500
2000
2500
3000
3500
3850
4500

% of Total
Students
50.32%
3.65%
3.57%
2.99%
2.73%
2.07%
1.61%
0.93%
2.14%

Average FY’19-23
Scholarship Increase
0.00%
8.00%
27.00%
50.40%
74.10%
95.80%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%

1,761
1,261
1,005
1,000
1,000
885
385
35
(615)
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Conglomerate Transformation – Leaner Administrative Structure
FY'19

FY'20

FY'21

FY’22

FY’23

Headcount Reduction Analysis

▪1

Reduction of Federal Funds Personnel

0%

0%

0%

0%

0%

▪2

Reduction of Transitory / Temporary Personnel

-5%

-4%

-5%

-2%

-0%

▪3

Increase of Faculty Personnel

3%

3%

3%

0%

0%

▪4

Reduction of Faculty -Administrative Personnel

-20%

-17%

-21%

-2%

-0%

▪5

Reduction of Non-Faculty

-10%

-8%

-10%

-2%

-0%

11,965

11,440

10,814

10,672

10,650

37,906

62,232

90,848

96,934

97,898

FY’18
Total Headcount
Total Savings ($000’s)

12,779

Headcount Reduction Analysis

▪1

Addition of ~300 faculty through conversion from Trust positions. Positions were largely in Faculty-Administrative and Non-Faculty
positions and were spread across the different campuses

▪2

Elimination of non-faculty staff through new University-wide Conglomerate Structure and shared services using program consolidation
to generate areas of focus.
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Conglomerate Transformation – Leaner Administrative Structure
4 Conglomerates – beginning of FY19
RIO PIEDRAS CAMPUS
Río Piedras Campus: Students: 14,991 | Employees: 3,417
Bayamón Campus: Students: 4,165 | Employees: 543
Carolina Campus: Students: 3,368 | Employees: 340

MAYAGUEZ CAMPUS
Engineering, Aeronautics & Agricultural Sciences
Mayaguez Campus: Students: 13,230 | Employees: 2,840
Aguadilla Campus: Students: 3,140 | Employees: 292
Arecibo Campus: Students: 3,660 | Employees: 469
Utuado Campus: Students: 841 | Employees: 206

SOUTHEAST REGION CONGLOMERATE
Entrepreneurship, Business, Natural & Behavioral Sciences
Ponce Campus: Students: 2,827 | Employees: 473
Cayey Campus: Students: 3,098 | Employees: 517
Humacao Campus: Students: 3,319 | Employees: 511
MEDICAL SCIENCE CAMPUS
Medical Science Campus: Students: 2,401 | Employees: 2,697
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Conglomerate Transformation – Evaluating the Academic Transformation
The UPR is currently conducting a system-wide effort to evaluate and score all outstanding academic curriculums. The
finding will provide the tools to better serve the student population while reducing redundant expenses
Category

Graduation Rate

Total Compliance (C)
Partial Compliance (CP), eligible for Improvement Plan

Retention Rate

40% <

80% <

26-39 %

53-79%

25% >

52% >

No Compliance (NC)
Implementation Decisions

Implications

1. Enrichment and Expansion of Highly Effective
Programs
2. Transformation of distance programs
3. Reduction of programs / by Region College / UPR level
system
4. Close or eliminate programs
5. Academic and administrative consolidation or
restructuring

1. Plans per campus to attend, until graduation, students
enrolled in programs, declared in moratorium and
gradual closing
2. Notification to Institutional and Program Accreditation
Agencies and the Puerto Rico Board of Education
3. Relocation of the faculty according to preparation and
discipline of specialty
4. Consolidation of faculties, academic departments
within an enclosure
5. Relocation of faculties or schools and programs from
one enclosure to another
6. Reduction of trust staff and support services

No fiscal impact considered. Faculty will be
redistributed/revamped in focused areas.
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Pension Plan Considerations
The UPR Retirement System Funding Ratio as of June 30, 2016 was reported as 47.8%. The UPR Governing Board approved a
40 year plan for amortizing the unfunded liability considering 3% annual active member growth and 7.75% annual interest
rate. Oversight Board finds that this method is optimistic and back-loaded, not appropriate for ongoing plan, but possibly
adequate for frozen plan with no future accruals.

▪ The Oversight Board is concerned that the UPR FP contribution may not be adequate to maintain solvency, and recommends
▪
▪

reductions in benefits but no reduction in total costs due to insolvency risks
The Oversight Board plan includes a freeze in the pension, and continuation of a Defined Contribution plan similar to those of
other Commonwealth plans, but with a 50% match on member contributions of up to 2%
The Oversight Board plan also includes a reduction in accrued benefits, using the same mechanism as for other plans, but with
recognition of the partially funded status of the UPR retirement system

UPR financial summary post measures, $ in millions
FY’18

FY’19

FY’20

FY’21

FY’22

FY’23

$74,559

$76,376

$79,598

$82,570

$85,108

$87,744

50% employer match on 2% of contributions

$0

$0

($4,700)

($4,600)

($4,600)

($4,600)

Savings from reduction in accrued pension benefits

$0

$0

$10,700

$10,700

$10,700

$10,700

Increased Contribution to improve solvency

$0

$0

($6,000)

($6,100)

($6,100)

($6,100)

$74,559

$76,376

$79,598

$82,570

$85,108

$87,744

Baseline Expenditure Valuation as of 06/20/161

Total Pension Cost

1 Per Proposed UPR Governing Board Fiscal Plan; assumes 7.75% discount rate and 40 year amortization
Note: As indicated on the Fiscal Plan, debt sustainability analysis is creditor agnostic, i.e. it does not take into account the rights and interests of creditors or allocate value of them.
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Debt Sustainability
▪

▪

▪

Historically, UPR has shown no independent and sustainable capacity to generate the funds to pay UPR bond debt
service on a net revenue basis
– Instead, UPR has borrowed using "gross pledges" of tuition revenues in which tuition revenue is paid directly to a
Bond Trustee and applied to pay debt service without regard to whether UPR is generating net revenues or is
running at a deficit
– In the face of declining Commonwealth subsidies and the need for UPR's own source revenues to support more of
its operations, this past structure is inherently unsustainable from the University's perspective
The 2018 UPR Fiscal Plan contains measures that, if timely and fully implemented by UPR, are projected to generate
positive net revenues by 2023, with such primary surplus available for payment of some restructured debt service
– These figures take into account the reduced level of Commonwealth subsidy payments to UPR contained in both
the Commonwealth and UPR fiscal plans
The following matrix illustrates, for varying coupon levels and primary surplus, or net revenue, figures, the amount of
restructured UPR debt that could be supported by that surplus level
– The matrix assumes a 30-year, level debt service payment structure and only one-time coverage of net revenues to
debt service
Sensitivity Analysis:
Implied Debt Capacity at 1.0x Coverage
$10
$20
$30

Illustrative Cash
Flow Available
Sensitivity Analysis:
PV Rate %

4.0%
5.0%
6.0%

$173
154
138

$346
307
275

$519
461
413

$40
$692
615
551

*Values in ($millions)
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Fiscal Plan Implementation Workstreams
UPR Board
UPR
AAFAF
UPR Transformational “Champion” Advisors

UPR Central Administration

PMO Office

UPR day-to-day Operations
1
Dues & Charges
2
Tuition & Scholarship Program
3
Federal Grant
Procurement
4
Training & Seminars
5
New Revenues &
Out of State
Opportunities
6
Procurement &
Externalization

▪
▪

Internal Resource
Next Steps: Submit documentation to
UPR Board

7

▪
▪

Internal Resource
Next Steps: Review elimination of
exemptions and scholarship distribution

8

▪
▪

External Resource
Next Steps: Coordinate meeting with
Project Manager(s)

9

▪
▪

Internal Resource
Next Steps: Coordinate meeting with
Project Manager(s)

10

▪
▪

External Resource
Next Steps: Coordinate meeting with
Project Manager(s)

11

▪
▪

External Resource
Next Steps: Coordinate meeting with
AAFAF Procurement team

12

Facility Optimization

Academic / Faculty
Optimization
Health Insurance
Plan
Medical Science
Campus

Retirement System

Budget & Cash Flow
Monitoring

▪
▪

External Resource
Next Steps: Coordinate meeting with
Project Manager(s)

▪
▪

External Resource
Next Steps: Coordinate meeting with
Project Manager(s)

▪
▪

Internal Resource
Next Steps: Coordinate meeting with
Project Manager(s)

▪
▪

Internal Resource
Next Steps: Coordinate meeting with
Project Manager(s)

▪
▪

External Resource
Next Steps: Coordinate meeting with
Retirement System – work with the UPR
Board Retirement Steering Committee

▪
▪

Internal Resource / AAFAF
Next Steps: Develop new base line
model & cash flow
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UPR post-certification reporting requirements (1/2)
Report type

Detail
▪

Enrollment and
tuition reporting

▪

Deadline for
public reporting

Within one month
of start for each
new academic
period (i.e.,
semester)

▪

15th day of
month of
start of
academic
period

▪

Last day of
following
month

Reporting cadence

Number of applicants, enrolled students, as
▪
well as tuition exemptions by-type (e.g., Honor
student, Veteran, etc.)
Detail on scholarship disbursements (Federal,
Commonwealth, and UPR-funded)

▪

Implementation on progress against
implementation plan for program
consolidation (including programs eliminated
or consolidated at a campus level), sharedservices progress, and specific workforce
reductions and positions eliminated

▪

Monthly

▪

15th day of
month

▪

Last day of
following
month

▪

Development of long term KPIs to report on
progress against all measures included in
certified fiscal plan (e.g., federal funding, IP
monetization)

▪

Submit full
implementation
plan and associated
performance
indicators to FOMB
by 1 month postcertification
Monthly submission
of progress against
agreed upon KPIs

▪

November
23, 2018

▪

December
30, 2018

▪

15th day of
month

▪

Last day of
following
month

Consolidation
and operating
model updates

Other
implementation
key
performance
indicators

Deadline to
FOMB

▪
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UPR post-certification reporting requirements (2/2)
Report type
Cash reserves

Detail

Reporting cadence

▪

▪

Monthly after
▪
budget is certified

15th day of
month

▪

N/A

Tracking of budgeted to actual cash flow per
budget certification agreements with FOMB
package to
– Include explanation for material variances
(>10% or $10 million)
– Include Income statement in the reporting
package

▪

15th day of
month

▪

Last day of
following month

▪

Monthly after
▪
budget is certified
for headline I/S
numbers
including A/R and
A/P
Annually for B/S ▪

July 15th

▪

August 31st

▪

13-week cash flow report
‒ Include accounts payable and accounts
receivable roll-forwards to better understand
the strength of collections and payables
pressure;
‒ Include 12 common weeks analysis to track
material changes

▪

Bi-weekly

▪

15th and 30th of
month

▪

7th and 22nd of
following month

▪

Detailed report of all auxiliary revenue streams
generated by UPR that includes a comprehensive
list for all campuses and component units of UPR
Certification that the report includes current
associated expenditures for all auxiliary / selfgenerated revenues through supporting
documentation
Monthly validation that these funds are still in
UPR bank account through supporting
documentation

▪

Quarterly

▪

First full report
due December
31, 2018
Updates due by
last day of
quarter (i.e.,
September 30;
December 31,
March 31, June
30)

▪

N/A

▪

Budget to actuals

Liquidity

▪
Auxiliary revenue
▪

Details of cash position and cash management
for all subsidiaries and other entities under UPR

Deadline to FOMB

Deadline for public
reporting

▪
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Net value of incremental revenue measures
FY18 - FY23 year over year incremental revenue (post-scholarships, post exemptions)
$, millions
Net cost of ongoing exemptions

Graduate tuition measure

Cost of undergraduate scholarship fund

Incremental undergraduate tuition

84
71

63

59
49

19

89
19

18

18

17

52

2018

Baseline revenue

63

74

87

95

-9

-12
-10

-11
-11

-9
-13

-10
-15

19

20

21

22

2023

90

87

85

82

80
30
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Reductions in a variety of benefits can generate ~$155 million of savings from
FY19-FY23
Category
Elimination of
Christmas bonus

Liquidations
(Adjustment in
Marginal Benefits)
Medical Insurance
Savings
(Adjustment in
Marginal Benefits)
Other Compensation
(Adjustment in
Marginal Benefits)
Total

FY23 impact
$, millions

Potential savings FY19-FY23, $, millions

Description

▪

Immediate elimination of Christmas
bonus in FY19 for all employees

▪

Based on 15-day liquidations of sick
days with impact in FY20

▪

Reduction to $390/month for faculty and
$125/month for non-faculty excluding those
with pre-existing conditions from FY20
$500/month in FY19

7

37

5

21

14

67

▪
29

155

▪

Small changes across items
including union changes; impact in
FY20

▪

Represents 20% savings across all
employee benefits over the 5-year
period

7

34
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~$35 million of savings from FY19-FY23 can be achieved by generating 9%
savings at hub campuses and 18% reduction of service at small campuses1
Potential annual procurement savings
$, millions
10.7
Equipment
Travel Expenses
Equipment Leasing
Professional Services
Maintenance and repairs
Security

Materials, Supplies and Fuels

0.3

0.4

0.8
2.2

2.6

Total savings
$, millions

35

FY23 savings
$, millions

11

4.1

1 Key assumptions:
• Base spend of 92MM on procurable spends across the 11 campuses
• Base includes Materials and supplies, maintenance and repairs, equipment, travel, professional services, and security
• Procurement savings of 9% in hub campuses and 18% in satellite campuses from reduction of services

32

NewRevised
UPR Fiscal
Plan
UPR
Fiscal
Plan l

~$91 million of additional revenue can be collected by increasing graduate
student tuition towards comparable universities
Program-by-program per credit increase
$
NON-EXHAUSTIVE

16.8
Masters
Programs1

143

Incremental
graduate
tuition
revenue from
measures
$, millions

143

17,296
Doctor of
Medicine3,4

18.3

19.4

185

285
Doctoral
Programs2

17.5

19.0

Baseline
graduate
tuition
$, millions

9,283

FY18

2018

19

20

21

22

2023

24

24

23

23

22

21

FY19

1 Increased to reflect average of graduate programs offered on the Island less ~$500 to maintain competitiveness
2 Assumes programs increase annual tuition to ~50% of mainland programs which cost ~$15,890 from public universities
3 For all advanced degree programs within the Medical School, tuition increased to 50% of average in-state, mainland tuition
4 Doctor of Dental Medicine and Medicine programs are 1 credit programs and the tuition is represented as an annual number
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Campus consolidation enables sharing of services and spreads out student to
Hub Campus
non-faculty ratio across the campuses
Colleges1

Current student to nonfaculty ratio for FY18

Student to non-faculty staff2 ratio post campus consolidation for FY23
11.51

Mayaguez

4.5
9.54

Aguadilla

8.9
8.11

Arecibo

Rio Piedras

12.5
5.2

Bayamon

13.2

Carolina

13.5

Cayey

Humacao

Ponce

8.3

Mayaguez hub

9.0
10.6

Rio Piedras & Medical
Sciences hub

Cayey Hub

▪

Assumes shared services across Rio Piedras and the Medical Sciences campuses
with employees being transferrable across each

▪

~500 employees currently operating within the Rio Piedras hub will be
transitioned to Cayey to provide additional support at those campuses

1 This analysis does not include Utuado campus and Medical Science Campus because of data unavailability
2 Includes all non-faculty and faculty-administrative positions across each campus included in the conglomerate structure
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UNIVERSIDAD DE PUERTO RICO
CALENDARIO DE PROCESO DE CIERRE DE AŇOFISCAL 2017-2018
Tareas y Trabajos: Estados Financieros AF 2017-2018
Fecha de Entrega

Tareas a realizarse

Tareas Realizadas
en:

22-Enero-2019

Ultimo día para enviar el Anejo S a la oficina de contabilidad de la
Administración Central. Verificar Licencias Enfermedad y Ordinaria- Costo
Trio Anejos K, K-1

Unidades

22-Enero-2019

Cierre Módulos de Compras ( Final) El mismo será para las compras regulares
del año fiscal 2017-2018. Favor asegurarse de haber recibido las requisiciones
de todas las área de su unidad.

Unidades / AC

25-Enero-2019

Registrar facturas y pagos pendientes (validaciones GL) y procesar el pago.

Unidades

25-Enero-2019

Resolver facturas en "hold", con error, corregir excepciones y unaccounted.

Unidades

25-Enero-2019

Otros relacionados Open PO en Oracle incluyendo las de "Import legacy".

Unidades

25-Enero-2019

Preparación para el cierre de los Módulos de Cuentas por Pagar y Compras

Unidades

25-Enero-2019

Preparar para efectos de GL el proceso de acumulación con el código 2108:
Identificar requisiciones y ordenes de compras pendientes
Revisar que las transacciones fueron completadas
Identificar ordenes pendientes de recibo y "Overshipment
Identificar ordenes pendientes de pago. Seguimiento para obtención de
facturas

Unidades

25-Enero-2019

Liquidación de las cajas menudas. fondo de cambio, cheques a cancelarse

Unidades

25-Enero-2019

Registrar los Derechos de Publicación y trabajar con los pagos de regalíasEditorial Universitaria

AC

25-Enero-2019

Recibo del archivo de Sistema de Retiro de los empleados activos de la Oficina
de Sistema de Información para el proceso correspondiente

AC

25-Enero-2019

Verificar cuentas de ingresos pendientes por distribuir (código 2451)

Unidades / AC

31-Enero-2019

Cuadre del modulo de activos fijos con GL

Unidades / AC

31-Enero-2019

Corregir
Excepciones
y
Unaccounted
(AP)
(errores
6,7,12)
(journals/encumbrance) (GL) que quedan en periodos anteriores y a Junio
2018.

Unidades / AC

31-Enero-2019

Registros de Obligaciones Misceláneas de agua, luz, teléfono y cualquier otro
gasto incurrido al 30 de junio de 2018. (Acumulación 2107)

Unidades / AC

31-Enero-2019

Proceso de "Mass Cancel"- Módulos de Compras.

Unidades

08-Febrero-2019

Análisis de las cuentas "Prepaid Expense"1582-1583 y llevar a los gastos
correspondientes, si el servicio se recibió.

Unidades

08-Febrero-2019

Análisis y Cuadre Cuenta Anticipos d Viaje 1581

Unidades / AC

08-Febrero-2019

Análisis y Cuadre Acumulaciones por Pagar "Third Parties"

Unidades / AC

08-Febrero-2019

Verificar y ajustar la cuentas de "Intercompanies"

08-Febrero-2019

Cotejo y cuadre de los Fondos de Pareo. El pareo debe estar balanceado. El
código de ingresos 4950 tiene que cuadrar con el código de gasto 9950.

Unidades

08-Febrero-2019

Archivo de Retiro de Empleados Activos

Unidades

15-Febrero-2019

Reconciliaciones bancarias y revisión de las partidas pendientes
contabilizar y preparar los ajustes correspondiente de todos los bancos

15-Febrero-2019

Procesar los Anejo S - Archivo las licencias por enfermedad / ordinarias
(GASB 16)

Unidades / AC

15-Febrero-2019

Registrar recobro de Costos Indirectos. Es importante que estén registrados en
su totalidad. Los códigos de ingresos 4940 al 4945 tienen que cuadrar con el
código de gasto 9011 al 9015

Unidades

22-Febrero-2019

Conciliar las cuentas a Pagar y Cobrar con Sistema de Retiro de UPR

Unidades

22-Febrero-2019

Registro de las inversiones y de los intereses sobre inversiones US Bank
Amortización de primas/ descuentos sobre bonos. Registrar el pago de la
deuda publica. Registro de porción corriente y no corriente.

AC

22-Febrero-2019

Transferencia entre unidades. Due to/ Due From y preparar los ajuste
correspondiente.

Unidades

28-Febrero-2019

Registrar cancelaciones de cheques caducados,
duplicados, etc. Enviar detalles de duplicados.

Unidades

28-Febrero-2019

Conciliación del Modulo de AP y GL.

Unidades

01-Marzo-2019

Registras las cuentas por cobrar pendientes al Gobierno Federal, PPMI,
Agencias Estatales y Otras. Establecer la reserva de cuentas incobrables.

Unidades

01-Marzo-2019

Verificación de cuentas por pagar y cobrar que estén registrados y que cuadren
con el detalle de los anejos. Verificar que todos los ajustes estén registrados en
el sistema SIA

Unidades / AC

01-Marzo-2019

Verificación y cuadre del Trial Balance de UPR para entregar a los auditores
externos.

AC

01-Marzo-2019

Análisis y registro de entradas de activos fijos. Análisis y registro de entrada de
interese capitalizable (M1) ( Proyectos Terminados)

Unidades/ AC

01-Marzo-2019

Verificación de las cuentas 1619- Clearing Partidas de Conciliación y 4xxx.
Partidas de Conciliación deben estar en cero al 30-junio-2018.

AC

01-Marzo-2019
05-Marzo-2019

08-Marzo-2019

Unidades / AC

de

llevar a la cuenta de

Cierre del periodo al 30 de junio de 2018
Entregar reconciliaciones bancarias al 30 de junio de 2018 a los Auditores
Externos
Luego del Análisis de Trial Balance de los auditores y de los anejos, se harán
ajustes para cuadrar con los mismos. Administración Central le pedirá a las
Unidades que hagan los ajustes pertinentes y se entraran en Administración
Central.

Unidades / AC

Unidades
AC

Unidades/ AC
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Comunicado
A: Directores de Finanzas y Contabilidad
Nuestras Oficinas de Finanzas son responsable de preparar los Informes Financieros
anuales del Sistema Universitario. A los fines de lograr la más pronta preparación del
mismo para el año fiscal que finalizará el 30 de junio de 2018, es imprescindible que
todas las unidades que componen el Sistema Universitario informen:
1. Liquidaciones de Oficiales Pagadores y devolución de balances en Caja al 30 de
junio 2018.
El Pagador Auxiliar o encargado de caja menuda deberá liquidar durante la semana del
25 de enero de 2019, todos los fondos en su poder y entregar el sobrante para el cuadre
y contabilización apropiado al Oficial Pagador. Además, deberán haber liquidado todas
las diferencias establecidas por la Oficina de Contabilidad.
2. Lista de Cuentas a Cobrar y a Pagar entre Unidades, a Individuos, Entidades
Privadas, Gobierno Federal y Estatal.
Esta lista detallara por fondo acreedor todas las deudas a la Universidad, pendientes de
cobro al 30 de junio. Especificando el nombre del deudor, la cuenta y el importe.
Los balances de las cuentas a cobrar tienen que verificarlos con el trial balances, que
las mismas estén débito y por consiguiente las cuentas a pagar deberán estar en crédito.
3. Lista de Cuentas a cobrar y a pagar del Sistema de Retiro
Esta lista detallara las deudas pendientes cobro (1360) y pago (2360) al 30 de junio.
La misma deberá cuadrar con la Carta que enviará Retiro UPR.
4. Inventarios
Se someterán listas certificadas de los Inventarios de Materiales en los Almacenes
correspondientes al Fondo General y de libros y suministros para la reventa de los
Fondos Rotatorios, Librerías y Empresas Universitarias.
5. Lista de Propiedad Mueble (Cada Unidad deberá desarrollar su listado)
Esta lista detallará, por separado, especificando en las altas el número de propiedad, la
descripción, la fecha de adquisición, vida útil y el costo mayor de cinco mil dólares
(5,000.). En las bajas especificará el número de propiedad, fecha en que fue dado de
baja, costo y la razón (ej. decomisado, robo, transferencia, etc.).
6. Informe de Función
Tendrán que verificar todos aquellos gastos que tengan función 000 y deberán ser
corregido con la función correspondiente al 30 de junio. Excepto la depreciación que se
usa el código 6305.

7. Prepagos
Aquellas oficinas que solicitaron orden de compra (C.O.D.) y recibieron la mercancía,
deberán notificar a la persona de recibo y entrega para que éste registre el recibo en el
sistema (UFIS). Tendrán que enviar factura con la Ley 84 firmada, información completa
del suplidor, número que identifique y cantidad según pago por anticipado a la Oficina
de Contabilidad. Si este proceso no se realiza con los C.O.D. (prepagos 1582-1583), el
gasto nunca se contabilizará en la cuenta donde se originó el mismo. La cuenta de
prepago quedará con balance débito, el cual es incorrecto.
8. Trial Balances. Verificar códigos de ingresos que deben tener balance crédito y
códigos de gasto que debe tener balance débito.
9. Fondos Estatales, Federales y Privados. Revisar todos los fondos, que sus códigos
de ingresos sea el correspondiente según su naturaleza.
10. Cuentas que deben quedar en cero
A. Ingresos pendientes de distribuir (2451) Si esta cuenta tiene balance al 30
de junio deberán investigar a que cuenta deben llevar los fondos pendientes a distribuir.
De haber cantidad pendiente tienen que enviar el Anejo I detallando las partidas
pendientes.
B. Cuentas entre unidades (1371 y 2171) (Between Units) tendrán la
obligación de ponerse de acuerdo con la unidad que establezca la cuenta a cobrar y o a
pagar para así hacer lo propio en la otra unidad. Al final estos códigos deberán sumar
a cero (0).
C. Pareos de Fondos (4950 con el 9950). Para cuentas de los fondos 213 y 214
deben verificar que los códigos de referencia cuadren al 30 de junio. Tienen que verificar
también el código 4311 que corresponde al 75% del ingreso de las Becas.
El fondo 215 se coteja el código 4311 con los gastos de beca (8XXX) que deben cuadrar
a cero al 30 de junio.
D. Costos Indirectos (4940 al 4945 con el 9011 y 9015). Estas cuentas
deberán cuadrar a cero al 30 de junio. Deben estar registrados en su totalidad.
E. Due to Due from (19XX con 29XX). Deberán cuadrar a cero al 30 de junio.
F. Transferencias No Mandatorios (4990-95 con 9990-95). Deberán cuadrar
a cero al 30 de junio. Se les enviara partidas a las unidades para su corrección.
G. Cuentas “Clearing” (16XX) y (5201). No deben tener balances y de existir
deberán corregirlas al 30 de junio.
11. Anejos para los Estados Financieros. Deberán ser completado en su totalidad ya
que complementan los estados y son revisados por los Auditores Internos y Externos.
Cualquier otra información que no haya sido mencionada, específicamente en este
comunicado, y que deba reflejarse en los Informes Financieros de la Universidad de
Puerto Rico al 30 de junio de 2018, deberá someterse igualmente en todo su detalle.
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Report to the
Faculty, Administration, Trustees, and Students
of

The University of Puerto Rico
San Juan, PR
The University of Puerto Rico—Aguadilla
The University of Puerto Rico—Arecibo
The University of Puerto Rico—Bayamón
The University of Puerto Rico—Carolina
The University of Puerto Rico—Cayey
The University of Puerto Rico—Humacao
The University of Puerto Rico—Mayagüez
The University of Puerto Rico—Ponce
The University of Puerto Rico—Rio Piedras
The University of Puerto Rico—Utuado
by
A Team Representing the
Middle States Commission on Higher Education
Prepared After a
Follow-Up Visit to the Institution on:
September 12-16, 2010
The Visitor(s):
Dr. John C. Cavanaugh (Chair)
Chancellor, Pennsylvania State System of Higher Education
Dr. José A. Adames
Academic Vice President, Bergen Community College
Dr. Thomas J. Botzman
Vice President for Business and Finance, St. Mary’s College of Maryland
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Vice President for Administration and Finance, CUNY—New York City College of Technology
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Dr. Linda McMillin
Professor, Susquehanna University
Dr. Mervin E. Newton
Professor Emeritus, Thiel College
Dr. Stephen Straight
Professor Emeritus, SUNY at Binghamton
Working with the Visitors:
Dr. Luis Pedraja
Dr. Mary Ellen Petrisko
Mr. Richard Pokrass
Institutional Officials:
Dr. José Ramón de la Torre
President of the University of Puerto Rico
Prof. Ibis L. Aponte-Avellanet
Vice President for Academic Affairs
Ms. Ygri Rivera
President, Board of Trustees
Ivelice Cardona Cortes, Chancellor
University of Puerto Rico—Aguadilla
Prof. Juan Ramírez Silva, Acting Chancellor
University of Puerto Rico—Arecibo
Dr. Arturo Avilés González, Chancellor
University of Puerto Rico—Bayamón
Trinidad Fernández-Miranda, Interim Chancellor
University of Puerto Rico—Carolina
Dr. Juan Varona
University of Puerto Rico—Cayey
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University of Puerto Rico—Humacao
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University of Puerto Rico—Mayagüez
Dr. Fernando Rodriguez
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I. Institutional Overview (from the follow-up report)
The University of Puerto Rico, founded in 1903, is a state supported university system
established by Law No. 1 of January 20, 1966, as amended, with the mission to serve the people of
Puerto Rico and contribute to the development and enjoyment of the fundamental, ethical and
aesthetic values of Puerto Rican culture, and committed to the ideals of a democratic society
(http://sindicos.upr.edu/docs/ley-upr.pdf). To advance its mission, the University strives to provide
high quality education and create new knowledge in the Arts, Sciences and Technology.




The University system comprises 11 institutional units:
Three main campuses: Río Piedras, Mayagüez, and Medical Sciences, with Research
Universities – High Research Activity; Master’s Colleges and Universities - Larger Programs,
and; Special Focus Institutions - Medical Schools and Medical Centers Carnegie
Classifications, respectively;
Eight colleges: UPR at Cayey, Humacao, Arecibo, Bayamón, Ponce, Aguadilla, Carolina, and
Utuado with Baccalaureate Colleges - Diverse Fields Carnegie Classification.

At present, the UPR system offers a total of 463 different degrees in the Arts, Sciences,
Business, Engineering and Technology, including 35 philosophy and professional doctorates, 128
masters, 16 graduate certificates, 245 baccalaureate and 39 associate degrees, many of which are
unique to the Island, plus 42 Medicine and Dental Medicine residency programs and 192 transfer
programs between units leading to baccalaureate degrees.
Tuition is among the lowest in the nation, accounting for less than 10% of UPR revenues. In
accordance with a 4% annual increase per incoming class established in Certification No. 60 (20062007) of the Board of Trustees, tuition has increased from $45 per undergraduate credit hour in
2007 to $51 in 2010 and from $113 per graduate credit hour in 2007 to $127 in 2010
(http://www.certifica.upr.edu/PDF/CERTIFICACION/2006-2007/60%202006-2007.pdf). Each
cohort is guaranteed the same tuition rate for a period of 150% the time required for degree
completion.
Since its inception, the UPR confers 9,000 degrees per year. Of the over 30,000 high school
students that take the College Board in Puerto Rico, 65% apply for admission to the UPR. One out
of each 3 university students on the Island pursues studies in UPR and one of every two university
degrees are conferred by the UPR. Over 90%of the UPR student body is of Hispanic origin, with
close to 70% of undergraduates receiving a Pell Grant. With a faculty and nonteaching personnel of
close to 5,000 and 9,000 respectively, and a total enrollment of over 65,000 in 2009-2010, UPR is the
premier Hispanic serving institution in the United States and the baccalaureate origin institution of
17% of all Hispanics that have obtained a Ph.D. in Science and Engineering nationwide.
II. Nature and Conduct of the Visit
On June 24, the Middle States Commission on Higher Education took the following action:
To note receipt of the voluntary information report. To place the institution on probation
because of a lack of evidence that the institution is in compliance with Standard 4
(Leadership and Governance) and Standard 11 (Educational Offerings). To request a
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monitoring report due by September 1, 2010, documenting evidence that the institution has
achieved and can sustain ongoing compliance with (1) Standard 4 (Leadership and
Governance), including but not limited to the development and implementation of clear
institutional policies specifying the respective authority of the different governance bodies
and their respective roles and responsibilities in shared governance; and (2) Standard 11
(Educational Offerings), including but not limited to a plan for assuring the rigor, continuity,
and length of courses affected by the institution's closure. In addition, the report should
document evidence of the development and/or implementation of a long-term financial
plan, including steps taken to improve the institution's finances and the development of
alternative funding sources (Standard 3). An on-site evaluation will follow submission of the
report. The purpose of the on-site evaluation is to verify the information provided in the
monitoring report and the institution's ongoing and sustainable compliance with the
Commission's accreditation standards. To further direct a prompt Commission liaison
guidance visit to discuss the Commission's expectations for reporting. To note that the
institution remains accredited while on probation. To note that the Periodic Review Report
due June 1, 2010 was received and will be acted upon by the Commission in November.
The Visiting Team was dispatched to assess institutional progress regarding these actions.
III. Commendations and Summary of Institutional Strengths
The Visiting Team wishes to commend each institution for putting in place opportunities for
students to complete their studies.
IV. Compliance with Accreditation Standard(s) Under Review
The Visiting Team considered UPR’s progress with regard to three Standards.
Standard 3: Institutional Resources
The Visiting Team’s evaluation of Standard 3 differed from that of Standards 4 and 11. The Team
did not have current financial information for the System nor any financial statements for each
campus. Therefore, the analysis is based only on the available System data, which were 15 months
old (i.e., data were from June 30, 2009). The lack of current data means that the Team is unable to
confirm compliance with Standard 3 which requires that “…the resources necessary to achieve
[UPR’s] mission and goals are available…”
The first of the Commission’s Fundamental Elements of Institutional Resources requires “strategies
to measure and access the level of, and efficient utilization of, institutional resources required to
support the institution’s mission and goals.” First, given the fact that the institution has been
running deficits for a number of fiscal years, the visiting team is concerned about the ability to
continue to operate at the current expense level. Second, the audited financial statements are not
timely. For example, the 2009 statement was issued almost one year late, on June 24, 2010. The
information contained in the audited report, therefore, is not available to decision makers at the
central system or on the respective campuses. Additional helpful information would be a trial
balance for each of the campuses and the central system office, which are not required in the
financial statements.
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Analysis of current cash flow is unavailable and is of significant interest given that a $100 million
bank loan is being used to finance operating expenses. The unrestricted net assets have dropped to
negative $60 million from a positive $12 million in 2007. Also, on June 30, 2009, the statement of
net assets shows a liability for bank overdraft of $23 million. Also, note 6 of the 2009 financial
statements indicate a line of credit with the Government Development Bank (GDB) for $60 million,
of which $51 million was outstanding. It can be inferred that the UPR had evidence of significant
cash difficulties prior to the work stoppage.
Element four of Standard 3 requires a “financial planning and budgeting process aligned with the
institution’s mission, goals, and plan that provides for an annual budget and multi-year budget
projections.” Although there was anecdotal evidence of discussions on some campuses related to
asset allocation, there was not a comprehensive plan to follow and use as a base for communication.
Multi-year budget projections were provided at a high level, often using an optimistic scenario of
general economic recovery over the next two years. High level planning documents were provided
for the multi-year projections; however, the team was unable to ascertain the level of detail for
planning and implementation at the campus level. Element four also mentions “resource acquisition
and allocation for … subsidiary … organizations”, such as the Hospital. Although the medical
school was not a part of the current MSCHE action, the 2009 financial statements indicate on page
two that ,”As discussed in Note 13 to the financial statements, the Hospital has experienced
recurring losses since it commenced operations and has a net capital deficiency, this raises
substantial doubt about its ability to continue as a going concern.” The visiting team observes that
there are issues, such as the financial drain induced by the Hospital, raised in the financial statements
that are exacerbated as a result of limited institutional focus and lack of timeliness in reporting.
Visits to the campuses indicated that the facilities appear to be in overall good condition and able to
support the academic program. The financial crisis has delayed some construction and renovation
projects, potentially impacting future ability to support academic mission and delivery of services.
There is indication that the institutional controls that would align resources and expenses are not
functioning properly. This is evidenced by the lack of current audited financial statements, a general
sense by campus stakeholders that they lack information related to finance, and lack of follow up to
the audit. Clearly, the 2009 audit, and those for prior years, indicates a rapidly deteriorating financial
situation that is only now being addressed.
The visiting team met budget managers in the central office and campuses who had a strong sense
of where the budget challenges and opportunities lie. Given the size and complexity of the deficits,
the central office must take a strong lead and communicate the changes required. At the same time,
a number of stakeholder groups have provided substantive ideas to help with turning things around.
For example, several campuses are expanding continuing education offerings, upgrading
performance of food service and vending auxiliaries, and even preparing to host student-led
fundraising efforts. The input of those most impacted by the budget challenges should be used as a
way to build much-needed trust and an enhanced sense of how to move forward together.
Requirements
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1. Provide audited financial statements for fiscal year 2010 as soon as possible, and not later
than January 2011. The financial statements should be distributed widely, with open forums
held to discuss results on each campus within one month of issue.
2. Document the steps taken to improve UPR’s short- and long-term financial viability and
sustainability.
3. Provide pro-forma budgets that demonstrate an ability to generate balanced budgets for each
campus for fiscal years 2012 through 2015. Include in each pro-forma budget a specific set
of assumptions, including personnel counts and compensation planning.
Recommendations
1. Provide each campus with a quarterly budget update for December 2010, March 2011, and
June 2011. Preferably, share the update in an open forum on each campus, demonstrating
the linkages between plans and budgets.
2. Provide detailed financial information that includes balance sheets and cash flow statements
for each campus and the central office. Share this information openly by June 2011.
Standard 4: Leadership and Governance
Regarding Standard 4 (Leadership and Governance) the Visiting Team does not find sufficient
evidence of compliance.
The Team notes several key competencies with respect to leadership and governance. In particular,
it is clear that the Vice President for Academic Affairs is immersed in these issues, and is certainly
aware of and has a command of the issues. We also acknowledge that the finance and budget
personnel are competent leaders and are working on appropriate plans to deal with the fiscal
challenges facing the system. The Vice President for Student Life, although relatively new, appears
to have a good grasp of key issues with respect to students.
The Visiting Team realizes that the timeline for response was short. However, several major issues
either remain unaddressed or have been addressed mainly through planning documents. Although
these reflect good and positive steps, it is the case that little evidence about their effectiveness has
been gathered to date.
UPR Central Administration is a centralized operation. The Visiting Team takes no position about
whether this is or is not appropriate. However, we do note that the requirement of consultation as
described in Standard 4 goes beyond simply meeting with various constituency groups. Rather, there
needs to be clear evidence that input is not only solicited but is considered in the decision making
process. Additionally, simply stating an open door policy does not make it truly open. To foster this
in a tangible way, the Visiting Team urges all UPR senior administrators to conduct campus visits
and hold listening sessions at each for all constituency groups. Such actions will begin the process of
building trust and opening honest, transparent dialog.
UPR Central Administration has developed a Roadmap for addressing issues pertaining to leadership
and governance. The Visiting Team makes several observations about this plan; the most important
is that the action steps outlined in the Roadmap occur in a timeframe that extends from August 2010
through summer 2011. This means that few of the steps outlined have actually been implemented.
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UPR Central Administration also proposed an Action Plan that consists of several steps. A key
component of this plan is “The 7 Ad Hoc Committees of 7” which apparently consists of
workgroups that will make “recommendations for improvement.” The Visiting Team notes the
following about these Committees:
 The articulation of the Ad Hoc Committees with established groups is unclear. The charge
to the Committees and their articulation must be made explicit and transparent.
 The process of selecting members is unclear. We urge that there be substantive collaboration
with key constituency groups regarding how members are selected.
 It is unclear whether the Board of Trustees has endorsed these Committees and will support
them adequately. This is important, as the Board may need to discuss and act on
recommendations made by the Committees.
The Visiting Team urges that clear communications regarding the need and purpose of the
Committees be developed and shared with all constituents, that the campuses be brought into the
process of membership selection and in developing the charge to the Committees, that the processes
used by the Committees be open and transparent, that their relations to existing structures be made
explicit, and that the Board be fully briefed.
UPR Central Administration does not give evidence of having an effective means of communicating
with its constituencies. We saw no evidence of ongoing, meaningful dialog with faculty or students.
We saw considerable evidence of downward information flow from the Central Administration to
the campuses; however, how input from Chancellors and other key campus leaders is used is
unclear. Earlier in this report we listed suggestions about how senior leaders can begin building
meaningful dialog and processes of input.
The Board of Trustees is comprised of 17 individuals, 14 of whom are appointed by the Governor.
The Visiting Team did not find evidence of the following requirements of governing boards under
Standard 4:
 a governing body that assists in generating resources needed to sustain and improve the
institution;
 a procedure in place for the periodic objective assessment of the governing body in meeting
stated governing body objectives.
Evidence supporting these aspects for the Board are required. Along these lines, it was difficult for
the Visiting Team to establish whether the full Board is equally aware of the fiscal issues facing UPR.
Although the chair of the finance committee was knowledgeable, the fact that only a select group of
Board members were invited to meet with the Team made broader assessment of Board knowledge
impossible. The Team could not establish whether the Board has stated objectives for itself. The
Team also notes evidence of difficult relations between members.
The Visiting Team was given evidence of concerns regarding collaboration between campuses and
the Central Administration. For example, the Team found no evidence that campuses were involved
in the discussions or decision that created the Open University program of removing the gates and
fences at campuses; indeed, several campuses (e.g., Ponce, Arecibo, and Rio Piedras) raised concerns
about campus safety if the gates and fences are removed. The Team was not provided with evidence
of broad participation in the creation of several aspects of the follow-up report (e.g., the 7 Ad hoc
Committees). Campuses uniformly expressed concern over the lack of a specific location that
constituents could go to for official information or announcements regarding important actions.

UPR Visiting Team Final Report
Page 9 of 13
Campuses expressed serious concerns regarding the lack of timely information about budget issues
from Central Administration. Campuses uniformly expressed concern over the lack of effective
means to provide input and a lack of transparency in information and decisions (e.g., faculty in
particular expressed that they have many ideas for reducing expenses, but have yet to have an
effective means for providing input). Campuses also feel that Central Administration is a clearly topdown organization.
One issue that was raised concerned the process for selecting the Chancellor of the Cayey campus.
The Visiting Team reviewed evidence and the policies, and concludes that the policies permit
flexibility. However, the Team also notes that the communication of the decision and its rationale
should have been clearer and made more broadly. It should also be noted that the Roadmap indicates
that the policy for selecting senior leadership is under review. With regard to the selection of senior
leaders and this process review, the Team recommends that a formal process of succession planning
be implemented, and that fixed terms for the UPR President, Chancellors, and other senior leaders
be instituted to ensure continuity in times of governmental transition.
The Visiting Team notes several positive practices on campuses that may serve as internal “best
practices” in terms of shared governance:









At Aguadilla and Mayaguez the Team noted good participative discussions about faculty
reductions and replacements both within and across departments and colleges in terms of
sharing resources; budget directors indicated their willingness to help out at the
department/unit levels; ongoing discussion about alternative educational programs
(continuing ed, etc.) to promote new revenue generation; entrepreneurial ideas (e.g., cafeteria
revenues stayed local); and noted that senior administrators are well known and accessible at
Aguadilla.
At Cayey the Team noted that the academic dean, by means of a budget exercise, promoted
conversations among department heads regarding faculty personnel planning; the
institutional research director and budget director both successfully worked through
objections by Central Administration about how they wanted to link budget and planning;
the budget director meets with constituents; and the Team saw evidence of good collegiality.
At Ponce the Team noted that students knew where to go to get information.
At Arecibo the Team noted that department heads and administrators worked together on
monitoring report.
At Utuado the Team noted that the budget director indicated ongoing cross-institution
discussions among budget directors about sharing resources.
At Bayamon the Team noted an entrepreneurial faculty intramural program to foster
additional resources (i.e., faculty working on campus through consulting or private practice
in which the faculty get 80% of net revenue and the institution gets 20%).

Requirements
1. Evidence that the Board of Trustees meets the following:
a. a governing body that assists in generating resources needed to sustain and improve
the institution;
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2.
3.
4.
5.

b. a procedure in place for the periodic objective assessment of the governing body in
meeting stated governing body objectives.
Evidence that steps have been taken to assure continuity and stability of institutional
leadership particularly in times of governmental transition.
Evidence that the Action Plan is implemented, that it is assessed, and the data are used for
continuous improvement of UPR processes.
Evidence that steps have been taken to improve shared governance, especially in
documenting how campus input is solicited and considered in decision making at the System
level.
Evidence that communication between the Central Administration and the campuses, and
within campuses, is clear, timely, and accurate, and that the sources of such communications
are clearly defined and made available to all constituents.

Recommendation
1. That clear communications regarding the need and purpose of the 7 Ad Hoc Committees be
developed and shared with all constituents, that the campuses be brought into the process of
membership selection and in developing the charge to the Committees, that the processes
used by the Committees be open and transparent, that their relations to existing structures
be made explicit, and that the Board be fully briefed.
Suggestions
1. That senior leaders in the Central Administration institute regular campus visits and hold
informational and listening sessions that are open to all constituents.
2. That fixed terms for the UPR President, Chancellors, and other senior leaders be considered.
Standard 11: Educational Offerings
The Middle States Commission acted to note receipt of the voluntary information report and to
place 10 of the 11 institutions on probation because of a lack of evidence that each is in compliance
with Standard 11 (Educational Offerings). Specifically, Middle States needs to see demonstration of
evidence of a plan for assuring the rigor, continuity, and length of courses affected by the closure.
The institutions came out of compliance because of the interruption in the academic offerings.
However, each institution has demonstrated evidence that they are now in compliance. That being
said, there is a need for additional data analysis of the impact of the interruption on student learning
and academic progress, and the development of a contingency plan for any future interruption.
Each institution is commended for putting in place opportunities for students to complete their
studies. We see clear and ample evidence that this took place.
We recognize that some institutions were more heavily impacted than others with the interruption,
and many institutions undertook similar efforts. Details concerning individual campuses follow:
Arecibo
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During the interruption, faculty continued to use multiple means of communication (e.g., email and
phone) to stay in contact with students and to encourage students to continue the review of
materials. Upon the return to session, faculty conducted a review of previous material before
continuing to make up the number of hours required to complete semester. Additional class
sessions were held, especially those in the natural sciences. Classes were monitored to ensure faculty
and student attendance.
Aguadilla
The same efforts by faculty and staff took place at Aguadilla, as noted earlier. There is sufficient
data and evidence that supports this finding. During the interruptions, there is evidence that some
courses continued to be conducted online.
Bayamon
At Bayamon we found similar efforts by faculty and staff to ensure that after the interruption there
was the rigor, continuity, and length of courses required by Middle States. Student internships
continuing education programs were not disrupted.
Carolina
Carolina is the only university on the quarter system. Given that the interruption occurred at the
beginning of one of the quarters, there was much more disruption than at other institutions. The
institution adjusted terms from 10 weeks of instruction plus exams to individual arrangement of
exams or final evaluation. The process is distinct from standard practice at Carolina, but it seems to
have worked well to ensure completion of student work. The student withdrawal rate was double
because of the timing of the interruption, but nearly all students returned for the current term. As
noted earlier, an additional concern was about the replacement of the final exam period with an
alternate means of assessment, but it seems to have worked.
Cayey
Cayey took similar efforts as noted earlier to start up and to complete the semester. It appears that
faculty claimed some level of ownership of strike. Evidence was provided to demonstrate that
Faculty was allowed to enter to continue and to monitor research projects already underway. At the
continuation of the semester, faculty who could not return made careful arrangements with others to
complete course.
Humacao
At Humacao similar efforts took place to continue the semester after the interruption. Faculty
research was disrupted and therefore some of their grants with NSF and NIH were put at risk. It
appears that Humacao has been in contact with these federal agencies to explain the situation and to
address funding concerns. The institution demonstrated through sufficient evidence that class work
was completed.
Mayaguez
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The graduate programs were not interrupted and in some cases augmented the level of research
projects underway. Graduate faculty and students did not feel impeded during strike. The staging of
the Pan American Games on campus delayed the continuation date of the semester and in turn the
start of the fall semester. We may not know the attrition rate and other impacts of the stoppage
until later, after additional analysis is conducted. Evidence demonstrates that students and faculty
agree that academic work was completed appropriately. There is concern about the January semester
and the possibility of another interruption because fall exams will be later due to the delay as a result
of the games.
Ponce
Similar start-of-semester efforts took place at Ponce, as noted earlier with other institutions. Ponce
used online options effectively. End of semester grades were examined and evidence provided.
Ponce faculty indicated that they were able to continue conducting research during the strike. Ponce
interviewed students who left following the strike.
Rio Piedras
Rio Piedras made the same kinds of efforts to start up the semester as noted earlier at the other
campuses. However, unlike some other campuses, research on campus was disrupted. There is
evidence that this has caused difficulties with NSF and NIH research grants and the institution is
consulting with these federal agencies to resolve their concerns. Rio Piedras has collected evidence
of the impact of the interruption and provided this to the visitors. The business school continued
due to their building being officially outside the campus fence. They need to follow up on their
research grants.
Utuado
Faculty and students agree that academic programs were completed. Reviews are occurring for “I”
grades.
Commendation
1. Each institution is commended for putting in place opportunities for students to complete
their studies.
Recommendations
1. Each of the institutions needs to complete analysis of the distribution of grades,
incompletes, withdrawals, attrition, and other indicators of the impact of the interruption on
students. Each campus needs to incorporate collected outcomes assessment data into its
assessment plans and then follow up to understand the impact on student learning, and meld
into its overall assessment data. In addition, each campus needs to continue to review the
progress of individual students to see if there is additional analysis needed in order to
determine if there is a long-term impact.
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2. Establish contingency plans for continuation of academic programs in the event of any
future interruptions. This would include a crisis communications plan specific to each
campus.
3. Continue to monitor the effects of the financial situation on the quality and rigor of the
academic program.
V. Summary
Based on a review of the follow-up reports and appendices, interviews, and other documents
reviewed during the visit, the team draws the following conclusions. The Team was provided
sufficient evidence of compliance regarding Standard 11. However, the Team does not find
sufficient evidence for compliance regarding Standard 4. The Team is unable to confirm compliance
with Standard 3 due to a lack of current financial data.

Appendix 11

Appendix 12

Appendix 13

Appendix 14

Teach-Out Plans and Agreements Form
Effective January 1, 2019
Instructions:
●
●

●
●
●

●
●
●
●
●

The institution must review the Commission’s Teach-Out Plans and Agreements Policy and
Teach-Out Plans and Agreements Procedures. This form aligns with the Policy and Procedures
effective January 1, 2019.
The institution must complete this form for any submission that requires a teach-out plan and/or
teach-out agreement as delineated in Commission policy and procedure.
o The institution submitting a substantive change request that also requires a teach-out plan
and agreements must submit this form in addition to the substantive change request.
o The institution undergoing a circumstance requiring a teach-out plan and agreements, as
outlined in Commission policy and procedure, must submit this form.
The institution must answer all applicable questions. If a question is not applicable to the specific
type of teach-out, please answer “not applicable” with a short explanation.
The institution must maintain student privacy protections in accordance with state and federal law
and regulations.
The institution must provide all required attachments to the Commission (as applicable). The
Commission may not process the submission until all attachments are submitted or the
Commission may process the request and require an updated teach-out plan.
The institution must label all attachments exactly as indicated. See Section C: Checklist of
Attachments.
The institution must combine the form and all attachments into a single bookmarked PDF file.
The institution must upload the PDF document into the secure MSCHE portal.
If additional information is requested, the institution must upload it to the secure MSCHE portal.
The institution should direct all questions to the institution’s designated Commission staff liaison.

Institution Name: University of Puerto Rico at Cayey (UPR-Cayey)
Date of Submission: 1/25/2019
Type of Teach-Out:
USDE emergency action to revoke Title IV
State licensing or legal authorization revoked
Commission action to show cause
Commission action to deny candidate for accreditation status
Commission action to deny accreditation
Commission action to withdraw candidate for accreditation status
Commission action to withdraw accreditation
Institution voluntary surrender of accreditation/membership
Substantive change to close institution (will cease operations entirely)
Substantive change to close a location that offers 100% of a program
Substantive change for change of legal status, ownership, or form of control
Other Commission Requested

Section A: Teach-Out Plan
Please answer all questions below. If a question is not applicable to the type of teach-out, please
indicate “not applicable”:
1. Teach-Out Plan Summary
a. Briefly describe the circumstances requiring the teach-out plan (250 words or less).
On January 10, 2019 the Middle States Commission on Higher Education (MSCHE) acted
to require the institution to show cause by January 25, 2019. As required, the institution
must complete and submit for approval a comprehensive, implementable Teach Out Plan
and agreement policy and procedure. As informed during the MSCHE required webinar on
January 15, 2019 (substituting the Commission liaison guidance visit), a general
preliminary Teach-Out Plan should be completed.
b. Describe the institution’s orderly plan for closure (500 words or less).
Agreements will be made with other institutions to receive transferring students. The
institution will notify students, faculty, administrative, support staff, stakeholders and
external community about the imminent teach-out period. Students who can complete by
program end date will be advised of the academic offering available to them. Students who
cannot complete by program end date will be advised regarding suitable options, including
transfer to comparable programs and/or institutions with agreements. The student’s
complete academic records and all other related information gathered in dossiers will be
transmitted promptly. Where financial aid is concerned, particularly federal or state grants,
arrangements will be made with the appropriate agencies to transfer the grants to the
receiving institution. Arrangements will be made to reassign faculty and staff, or assist
them in locating other employments. The institution will evaluate the staff needed to
complete the closure and that is required to fulfill the institution legal commitments.
However, responsibility for the final decision rests with the University of Puerto Rico
Governing Board.
c. Provide the estimated start date and end date for the teach-out period, during which time
the institution can reasonably complete the full implementation of the teach-out. The teachout period can range from 18-24 months. Also indicate the anticipated date of closure of
the institution or a site.
Estimated Teach-out Period Start Date: May, 2019
Estimated Teach-out Period End Date: May, 2020
Anticipated Date of Closure: Cease to offer degrees – June, 2020
➢

The institution is required to provide a timeline for the implementation of the teach-out plan. The
timeline should be comprehensive and indicate key milestones. Label the attachment 1-TeachOutTimeline.

d. If the institution is requesting longer than 24 months for the teach-out, provide evidence
that an extended period is warranted to equitably provide for students to complete their
education.
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The institution assessed the number of students who had approved 100 credit hours or
more and that can possibly finish a degree by the program end date of 2020. Out of 2865
students enrolled, only 930 (32.5%) have the required number of credit hours. The
institution will provide all the necessary academic resources needed for the students to
complete a program degree. If the institution accreditation is removed in May 2019, the
institution expects that 2500 will not be available to finish the degree, the institution will be
in dire need to place all the students in teach-out institutions, the students that need
campus housing in teach-out institution will not be able to get one and the students will not
be able to plan for a new financial situation.
e. Provide an inventory of academic programs included in the teach-out plan, including the
following information:
Inventory of Academic Programs Included in the Teach-out Plan (insert rows if needed)
Name of program
including credential
level as it appears in the
institution’s catalog

% of
program
offered
at
current
location

Proposed
Program End
Date
MM/DD/YYYY

Number of
students
currently
enrolled in
program
(as of the
time of
submission)

Number
of
students
who can
complete
by
program
end date

Number of
students
who will
not
complete
by
program
end date

Bachelor in Business
Administration

100%

05/19/2020

42

10

32

Bachelor of
Technology and
Office Administration
with major in Office
Management
Bachelor in Business
Administration with
major in Accounting
Bachelor in Business
Administration with
major in
Management
Bachelor of Sciences
with major in Biology
Bachelor of
Agricultural
Sciences (Articulated
Transfer Program)
Bachelor in Natural
Sciences
Bachelor of Sciences
with major in
Mathematics
Bachelor of Sciences
with major in
Chemistry

100%

05/19/2020

133

27

106

Accreditation
Council for
Business
Schools and
Programs
(ACBSP)
ACBSP

100%

05/19/2020

300

123

177

ACBSP

100%

05/19/2020

106

42

64

ACBSP

100%

05/19/2020

595

174

421

100%

05/19/2020

3

0

3

100%

05/19/2020

384

160

224

100%

05/19/2020

61

11

50

100%

05/19/2020

207

65

142
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Program is
accredited by
another
recognized
accrediting
agency (yes/no)
(name of
accreditor)

Name of program
including credential
level as it appears in the
institution’s catalog

% of
program
offered
at
current
location

Proposed
Program End
Date
MM/DD/YYYY

Number of
students
currently
enrolled in
program
(as of the
time of
submission)

Number
of
students
who can
complete
by
program
end date

Number of
students
who will
not
complete
by
program
end date

Bachelor of Arts with
major in Social
Sciences
Bachelor of Arts with
major in Psychology
Bachelor of Arts with
major in Psychology
and Community
Mental Health
Bachelor of Arts with
major in Sociology
Bachelor of Arts with
major in Hispanic
Studies
Bachelor of Arts with
major in English
Bachelor of Arts with
major in History
Bachelor of Arts with
major in Humanities
Bachelor of Arts in
Elementary
Education with major
in Natural Sciences

100%

05/19/2020

39

16

23

100%

05/19/2020

133

49

84

100%

05/19/2020

150

78

72

100%

05/19/2020

96

16

80

100%

05/19/2020

17

4

13

100%

05/19/2020

34

13

21

100%

05/19/2020

28

9

19

100%

05/19/2020

147

6

141

100%

05/19/2020

35

9

26

Bachelor of Arts in
Secondary Education
with major in
Mathematics
Bachelor of Arts in
Elementary
Education with major
in Special Education
Bachelor of Arts in
Elementary
Education with major
in Spanish
Bachelor of Arts in
Elementary
Education with major
in English
Bachelor of Arts in
Elementary
Education with major
in Mathematics

100%

05/19/2020

17

5

12

Council of the
Council for the
Accreditation
of Educator
Preparation
(CAEP)
CAEP

100%

05/19/2020

72

26

46

CAEP

100%

05/19/2020

15

7

9

CAEP

100%

05/19/2020

14

6

8

CAEP

100%

05/19/2020

10

7

3

CAEP
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Program is
accredited by
another
recognized
accrediting
agency (yes/no)
(name of
accreditor)

Name of program
including credential
level as it appears in the
institution’s catalog

% of
program
offered
at
current
location

Proposed
Program End
Date
MM/DD/YYYY

Number of
students
currently
enrolled in
program
(as of the
time of
submission)

Number
of
students
who can
complete
by
program
end date

Number of
students
who will
not
complete
by
program
end date

Bachelor of Arts in
Secondary Education
with major in Natural
Sciences
Bachelor of Arts in
Secondary Education
with major in Physical
Education
Bachelor of Arts in
Secondary Education
with major in Spanish
Bachelor of Arts in
Elementary
Education with major
in History
Bachelor of Arts in
Secondary Education
with major in English
Others
Total

100%

05/19/2020

64

7

57

CAEP

100%

05/19/2020

70

26

44

CAEP

100%

05/19/2020

17

6

11

CAEP

100%

05/19/2020

3

2

1

CAEP

100%

05/19/2020

34

10

24

CAEP

100%

05/19/2020

36
2865

14
930

22
1935

f.

Program is
accredited by
another
recognized
accrediting
agency (yes/no)
(name of
accreditor)

Identify the name of a designated staff person to supervise and implement teach-out
activities.
Dean of Academic Affairs

2. Equitable Treatment of Students
a. Describe how the institution will assist current students who are reasonably able to
complete their academic programs/credentials by the proposed program end date.
The Chancellor, Deans, Program Directors and Faculty will continue to adhere to and
remain accountable for complying with the Teach-Out Plan. The administration will provide
direct support to program director in our institution for them to fulfill his/her responsibilities
and duties until all students enrolled in the programs have completed their studies. The
institution will provide sufficiency of resources while currently-enrolled students complete
their studies. Resource support provided by the institution will include financial, personnel,
equipment, facilities, and organizational support. Academic programs will maintain a
sufficient number of faculty by continuing to employ and retain qualified faculty. An
academic analysis will lead to the identification and guaranteed offering of additional
courses needed by these students. Those courses will be added to the academic
programming during the teach out period. Courses required will be offered regardless of
class size. The full range of student resources and support services will continue to be
offered to ensure our ability to assist students in finding a path to degree completion.
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b. Describe how the institution will assist current students who are not reasonably able to
complete their academic programs/credentials by the proposed program end date.
Students who will not complete their degrees during the teach out period will be provided
assistance for successful transfer and potential degree completion at receiving institution.
Agreements will be made with other institutions to receive transferring students and to covalidate their academic records. Arrangements for transfer to other institutions will require
complete academic records and all other related information gathered in dossiers to be
transmitted promptly to teach out institutions. Where financial aid is concerned, particularly
federal or state the teach out plan will delineate procedures for coordinating transferring of
such records. Where such arrangements described above cannot be completed, students
will be informed and advised of alternate procedures they may initiate for facilitating
transfer of their financial aids.
c. Describe academic services and any specific student services (academic counseling,
information sessions, transfer assistance activities, financial aid counseling, etc.) that will
be offered to students by the institution during the teach-out period.
The Registrar’s Office will assist and support all students during the teach-out process at
the University of Puerto Rico at Cayey, to facilitate their transfer to other higher education
institutions.
1. Students will be instructed in departmental meetings about the transfer process to
other institutions.
2. Email blasts will be sent out with all the necessary information.
3. Student Group sessions will be coordinated according to their academic
concentrations or field of study.
4. Various Open House activities will take place where teach-out institutions will
provide students with the necessary information about their academic offerings and
services they provide.
5. Orientation will be offered to all those who will visit the Registrar’s Office about the
possibilities of transfers to teach-out institutions.
Once the student requests a copy of their transcript, it will be sent to the institution the
student has selected to continue pursuing his/her college degree, no later than 5 days.
Transcript requests must be fully completed and paid at the Collection Office so the
Registrar’s Office may proceed with the process required. The requests for certifications of
recommendations by the Dean of Students received at the Registrar’s Office for verification
will be forwarded to the Deanship of Student Affairs within 5 working days for approval.
Request of Academic Transcript:
Each student can request his/her academic transcript following these steps:
In Person
1. Each student must visit the Registrar’s Office to complete the form Request of
Academic File.
2. At the Collection’s Office submit the payment. Currently, it has a fee of $5.00.
Submit both the payment receipt and form to the Registrar’s Office.
3. The document will be processed within 5 working days and mailed to the address
submitted by the student.
By Mail
The student must access the following link: www.cayey.upr.edu
1. Select the link - Services Online (SERVICIOS EN LÍNEA).
2. Select REGISTRO.
3. Select (Request of Academic file) SOLICITUD DE EXPEDIENTE ACADÉMICO.
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4. Download and complete the form and mail the request with a check or money order
to the following address:
University of Puerto Rico at Cayey
Registrar’s Office
PO Box 372230
Cayey, Puerto Rico 00737-2230
5. If requesting more than one copy, include a single payment for the total amount.
➢

The institution is required to provide evidence that financial aid counseling has been conducted
and onsite articulation events have taken place. Label the attachment(s) 2-FinAidCounseling
and 3-ArticulationEvents.

3. Required Notifications
a. Describe how the institution will specify additional financial charges, if any, that may result
from the teach-out plan and how the institution will notify current and prospective students
of any additional charges they will encounter because of the teach-out plan.
The institution will assist affected students, faculty, administrative and support staff so that
they experience minimal disruption in the pursuit of their course of study or professional
careers. In all cases, affected individuals will be notified of the decision to close a program
as soon as possible so that they can make appropriate plans. Students who have not
completed their programs will be advised by program director or professional counselors
regarding suitable options, including transfer to comparable programs. The UPR
Governing Board will certify any additional charges related to the teach-out.
➢

The institution is required to provide evidence that it has notified students of any additional
charges. Label the attachment 4-NotifIed Charges.

b. Describe how the institution will notify all relevant stakeholders (current and prospective
students, faculty, staff, public) about the teach-out and its intent to cease operations or
close a site.
Students, faculty, and staff will attend institutional meetings to be scheduled during the
teach out period. Media outlets will receive a Press Release and several updates as the
teach out period progresses. An official announcement of the Board of Trustees’ resolution
and other information pertaining to specific stakeholder groups will be available on the
institution’s website, social media and through email blasts. The institution will also provide
updates through diverse communication channels as we progress through the
implementation of the Plan. Arrangements will be made to reassign faculty and staff, or
assist them in locating other employment opportunities.
➢

The institution is required to provide evidence that it has notified all relevant stakeholders about
the teach-out and that it has posted an official public disclosure on its website. Label attachment
5-NotifTeach-Out.

4. Final Disposition of Records
a. Provide a proposal for the final disposition of all records related to the teach-out as
applicable:
1. Student records (admissions,
recommendations, final grades.

financial
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aid,

academic

transcripts,

faculty

The Registrar’s Office at the University of Puerto Rico at Cayey was established in
1967 to guarantee the confidentiality of academic files in accordance to the state
and federal regulations related to the management of information within the student
files. The office is responsible and totally accountable of all official documents,
attendance lists, graduation requests and final grades. It is important to denote that
the vault of the Registrar’s Office contains all academic files of active and inactive
students. Most important, during the second semester of 2018-2019 it contains
2,870, inactive files. This includes all students admitted since 1967 to this current
date, including those who completed their degrees and those who dropped out.
Worth mentioning, in 1995 the UPR at Cayey acquired a system known as:
Students Information Systems (SIS). This system allowed us to revamp and update
student data files. This facilitated the security information process. Currently it is
used to guarantee effectiveness of student data. During 2003-2004 the Registrar’s
Office and the Academic Deanship contracted a Company to digitize all academic
files we had from 1967 - 1995. Currently, we have paper files, digital files and an
electronic system as backups of our students’ academic files.
On the other hand, the Consejo de Educación de Puerto Rico (CEPR) approved on
March 15, 2017 a document known as: Formulario para el cierre de operaciones
de Instituciones de Educación Superior de Puerto Rico. (Form for the Closure
of Operations of Higher Education Institutions in Puerto Rico). According to the
protocol established and cited from the CEPR: The institution that plans to cease
operations totally or partially, must notify the CEPR in writing at least (6) months
prior to the date planned for closure. It also cites that the institution must establish
mechanisms where students and alumni can continue receiving official transcripts
and other official documents; otherwise the CEPR will become custodian of the
transcripts. The institution will submit to CEPR a microfilmed or digital copy of all
academic files including alumni. To implement the closure of the institution, CEPR
must receive the Closure Form no later than thirty days since the date the
institution announced its intention of closure.
Particularly considering our campus, and according to instructions from Central
Administration of the UPR, they will be in charge of protecting our student files. The
Registrar director with the System Information Office director of the campus will
hand in all student archives providing Central Administration full custody of student
files.
The paper files in the vault at the Registrar’s Office will be secured by the director
and will have the responsibility along with the institution’s administrator of the
Central Archives to transport the files to Central Administration’s designated area.
The following protocol will be established:
1. Files will be divided among active and inactive by the Registrar’s office
personnel
2. Files will be organized according to student number when admitted to UPR
Cayey
3. Boxes will be identified among active and inactive according to student
numbers.
4. Each box will contain a list indicating the files included.
5. Once completed all file distribution in boxes, coordination will take place
with the Dean of Administration and the administrator of the General
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Archive, in complying with Certification 62 2015-2016 Board of Trustees
(Reglamento para la Administración, Conservación y Disposición de
Documentos de la Universidad de Puerto Rico).
2. Personnel records (faculty and staff, payroll, benefits, recommendations, etc.)
All current records will be maintained in a secure manner to prevent loss,
destruction or unauthorized use. Arrangements will be made with the state archive
office, or other appropriate agency, for the retention of these records. All records
will be maintained for the required specified time and will remain accessible to
those with a need for access (e.g., Program Director, Coordinator). Institutional,
state and federal requirements will be followed. In all cases, the institution will
follow Certification 62, 2015-2016, UPR Governing Board.
3. Fiscal records (Federal and state grants, creditor, final audited financial statements)
State laws and IRS regulations regarding the disposition of assets from a non-profit
institution will be meticulously followed. In all cases, the institution will follow
Certification 62, 2015-2016, UPR Governing Board. All pertinent federal and state
agencies will be apprised of the institution's situation, and any obligations relating to
state or federal funds will be cleared with the proper authorities. In addition to
grants, the institution will follow, 2 Code of Federal Regulation-200.344, also
Sections 45. CFR 74.61 or 92.43 and abide by the award terms and conditions.
➢

The institution is required to provide evidence that transcripts have been produced and
transfers have been released. Label attachment(s) 6-Transcripts and 7-Transfers.

b. Describe any external requirements specifically relating to the retention and preservation of
student records.
•

•

The institution is guided by the UPR Certification 62, 2015-2016, UPR Governing
Board legally based on the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico Law 5, December 8, 1955.
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico (Handling of public documents). See appendix.
Form for the Closure of Operations of Higher Education Institutions in Puerto Rico
(Formulario Para El Cierre De Operaciones De Instituciones De Educación Superior en
Puerto Rico) Counsel of Education of Puerto Rico [Consejo de Educación de Puerto
Rico (CEPR)] – Approved March 15, 2017.

c. Indicate how the institution intends to preserve and make student records available to
students into the future.
The UPR-Cayey General Archive, UPR Central Administration and the Counsel of
Education of Puerto Rico are the principle designated instances to preserve and make
student records available, as the teach out period progresses. The institution will inform
the alumni, current and future students the final location of their records. Students will
request a copy of their transcripts to the following address:
•

Universidad de Puerto Rico en Cayey
P O Box 372230
Cayey, Puerto Rico 00737-2230

•

www.upr.edu
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•

If by any chance Central Administration UPR decides that CEPR will guard the files,
students will request a copy of their transcripts to the following address:
Consejo de Educación de Puerto Rico
Departamento de Estado
San Juan, 00901
(787) 641-7100

d. Designate a permanent location and final custodian/repository for student academic
records. Provide the name and contact information.
Initially, the University of Puerto Rico at Cayey will transfer student archives to the Central
Administration of the University of Puerto Rico and they will be protected by the Systems
Information Office and its director:
Ms. Evelyn Muñoz-Figueroa
787-250-0000 ext. 5450
Oficina Sistemas de Información
Administración Central Universidad de Puerto Rico
The final transfer of archives for the Registrar’s and the Collection’s Division located at the
Integrity server will be determined by Ms. Muñoz. The UPR Cayey Systems Information
Office (OSI) will be responsible for all transfer of student archives
➢

The institution is required to provide evidence that student records have been transferred to the
final repository. Label attachment 8-Transfer Repository.

e. Describe how and when notification to every current and former student will occur or has
occurred, indicating where the student records are being stored and how students can
obtain them
The institution will inform the alumni, current and future students the final location of their
records as soon as the arrangements are made with the repository agency or institution.
As teach out progresses, the students will request a copy of their transcripts to the
following address:

f.

•

Universidad de Puerto Rico en Cayey
P O Box 372230
Cayey, Puerto Rico 00737-2230

•

www.upr.edu
If by any chance Central Administration UPR decides that CEPR will guard the files,
students will request a copy of their transcripts to the following address:
Consejo de Educación de Puerto Rico
Departamento de Estado
San Juan, 00901
(787) 641-7100

➢

The institution is required to provide evidence that the institution has communicated with current
and former students regarding student records. Label attachment 9-NotifStudentRecords.

Will you be forwarding a copy of records to students prior to closing? Explain.

Page 10 of 18

During the teach out period, all current students will receive individualized packets of
information that could be shared with other institutions. It will include official and unofficial
transcripts copies. Teach out agreement forms will be included as well as information of
coursework accepted by the teach out institutions.
5. State and Federal Requirements Related to Teach-Outs
a. List the state and/or federal agencies the institution is working with on the teach-out.
Summarize the state and/or federal requirements for this type of teach-out.
The Council of Education of Puerto Rico [Consejo de Educación de Puerto Rico (CEPR)]
approved on March 15, 2017 a document known as: Formulario para el cierre de
operaciones de Instituciones de Educación Superior de Puerto Rico. (Form for the
Closure of Operations of Higher Education Institutions in Puerto Rico). According to the
protocol established and cited from the CEPR: The institution that plans to cease
operations totally or partially, must notify in writing to the CEPR at least (6) months before
the date planned for closure. It also cites that the institution must establish mechanism
where students and alumni can continue receiving official transcripts and other official
documents; otherwise the CEPR will become custodian of the transcripts. The institution
will submit to CEPR a microfilmed or digital copy of all the academic files including alumni.
To implement the closure of the institution, CEPR must receive no more than thirty days
the Closure Form taking into account the date the institution announced its intention of
closure.
➢

The institution is required to provide documentation outlining other agency requirements for the
teach-out (e.g. letter from the state agency listing requirements, protocols or instructions, etc.).
Label attachment 10-ExternalRequirements.

b. If applicable, provide the status of the dissolution or surrender of the charter or degree
granting authority with the state or federal agency, including the date of surrender.
Not applicable. The institution is not currently on dissolution or surrender of the charter or
degree granting authority. In the event of closure, the institution must notify in writing to
the CEPR at least (6) months before the date planned for closure.
The institution is required to provide documentation of the dissolution or surrender of the charter
or DGA. Label attachment 11-CharterDGAStatus.

6. Faculty and Staffing Considerations
a. Describe the institution’s orderly plan for the dissolution, transfer, reduction, or other
change to the workforce (faculty and staff).
The institution, under its possibilities, will arrange for continuation of the faculty and staff
that are necessary for the completion of the institution's work pending the closing date.
The Dean of Administration and the Dean of Academic Affairs will evaluate all the human
resources needed to fulfill the institution commitments. The institution will follow
institutional bylaws and the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico laws related to termination of
employment. In those instances, where faculty and staff will no longer be needed, the
institution will make effort to assist them in finding other employment opportunities.
b. Describe how the institution will make every effort to assist faculty and staff in finding
alternative employment, if applicable.
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While it is understood that the institution can make no guarantee, efforts to assist in
relocation and reassignment are expected to be arranged. (Article 48, UPR General
Bylaws). Also, Commonwealth of Puerto Rico Law 8, 4 February 2017, (Administration
and transformation of human resource in the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico) allows for the
relocation of government workers within government agencies.
c. Describe how the plan for faculty and staff will impact services provided to students.
Academic programs will employ and retain qualified faculty and staff in sufficient numbers
as teach out process progresses. It is expected that essential personnel will remain longer
than others based on satisfying the minimal needs of students and the legal requirements
for closing. The Dean of Administration and the Dean of Academic Affairs will evaluate all
the human resources needed to fulfill the institution commitments.
7. Does the institution intend to enter into teach-out agreements with other institutions or has
the Commission required that the institution enter into teach-out agreements?
a. If No, demonstrate the institution’s ability to fully implement and complete the teach-out
plan by itself.
During the MSCHE Teach-Out information webinar, the commissioners indicated that even
when Teach-Out Agreements are required, at this moment, no signed agreement is
required. However, the UPR-Cayey partially completed Section B.
b. If Yes, complete Section B.
Section B: Teach-Out Agreement(s)
If the institution is required by the Commission to submit a teach-out agreement with other
institution(s), or the institution elects to enter into teach-out agreements, please complete this section.
The institution’s request for approval must include all signed teach-out agreements that the institution
has entered into or intends to enter into with another institution, unless the institution is conducting its
own teach-out. The Commission will approve a teach-out agreement only between institutions that are
accredited or preaccredited by an accrediting agency recognized by the U.S. Department of
Education.
1. List the name(s) of institutions, including city and state, with which the institution is entering into a
teach-out agreement to support student completion or transfer. Also provide the names of
accrediting agency or agencies recognized by the United States Department of Education (USDE)
that accredit the institution(s) completing the teach-out:
Name of Teach-Out
Institution(s)
City/State

Interamerican
University of
Puerto Rico

Name of Academic Program(s)
(list all that apply)

Accrediting Agencies
Recognized by USDE
(list all that apply)

Status with
Accrediting Agency
Recognized by
USDE

● Baccalaureate in Business
Administration in Accounting
● Bachelor of Business
Administration Degree in
Human Resources
Management
● Bachelor of Arts Degree in
Secondary Education in
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Middle States
Commission on
Higher Education
(MSCHE)
Teacher Education
Accreditation
Council (TEAC)
Council for the

Accredited

Ana G. Méndez
University

Spanish
● Bachelor of Arts Degree in
the Teaching of English as
Second Language as a
Second Language at the
Secondary Level
● Bachelor of Arts Degree in
Elementary Education in
Special Education
● Bachelor of Arts Degree in
the Teaching of English as a
Second Language at the
Elementary Level
● Bachelor of Arts in Education
in Physical Education:
Secondary Level
● Bachelor of Arts Degree in
Humanistic Studies
● Bachelor of Arts Degree in
History
● Bachelor of Arts Degree in
English
● Bachelor of Arts Degree in
Spanish
● Bachelor of Science Degree
in Natural Science
● Bachelor of Science Degree
in Biology
● Bachelor of Science Degree
in Chemistry
● Bachelor of Science in
Mathematics
● Bachelor of Arts Degree in
Social Sciences
● Bachelor of Arts Degree in
Psychology
● Bachelor Degree in Business
Administration: Accounting
(G, C, Ca)
● Bachelor Degree in Business
Administration: Management
(G, C,Ca)
● Bachelor Degree in Business
Administration: Office
Technology Management (G)
● Bachelor in Business
Administration in Office
Administration and
Information Processing (C)
● Bachelor Degree in
Secondary Education:
General Science (G)
● Bachelor in Education:
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Accreditation of
Educator
Preparation
(CAEP)

Middle States
Commission on
Higher Education
(MSCHE)
Council for the
Accreditation of
Educator
Preparation
(CAEP)

Accredited

Pontifical Catholic
University of
Puerto Rico

Spanish (C)
● Bachelor Degree in
Secondary Education:
English (G, C)
● Bachelor in Arts in Education
in Teaching English as a
Second Language
Secondary level (Ca)
● Bachelor Degree in Physical
Education K-12 (G, C)
● Bachelor in Arts in Education
in Physical Education K-12
(Ca)
● Bachelor Degree in
Elementary Education:
English (G)
● Bachelor in Arts in Education
in Teaching English as a
Second Language
Elementary level (Ca)
● Bachelor Degree in Special
Education K-12 (G, C)
● Bachelor in Arts in Education
in Special Education K-12
(Ca)
● Bachelor Degree in Arts in
Humanities: SocioHumanistic Studies (G)
● Bachelor Degree in Science:
General Science (G)
● Bachelor Degree in Science:
Biology (G, C)
● Bachelor of Science in
Biology (Ca)
● Bachelor Degree in Science:
Chemistry (G, C)
● Bachelor Degree in Social
Sciences: General (G)
● Bachelor Degree in Social
Sciences: Psychology (G, C)
● Bachelor in Social Sciences
in Psychology (Ca)
● Bachelor of Business
Administration in Accounting
● Bachelor of Business
Administration in
Management
● Bachelor of Business
Administration in Office
Administration
● Bachelor of Science of
Science in Secondary
Education in General Science
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Middle States
Commission on
Higher Education
(MSCHE)

Accredited

●

●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
University of
Sacred Heart

●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Bachelor of Science of
Science in Secondary
Education in Physical
Education
Bachelor of Science of
Science in Secondary
Education in English
Bachelor of Science of
Science in Secondary
Education in Spanish
Bachelor of Science in
Elementary Education in
English
Bachelor of Science in
Elementary Education in
Special Education K-12
Bachelor of Arts in History
Bachelor Degree of Arts in
English
Bachelor of Arts in Hispanic
Studies
Bachelor Degree in Natural
Sciences
Bachelor of Science Degree
in Biology
Bachelor of Science in
Chemistry
Bachelor of Science in
Mathematics
Bachelor of Science Degree
in Psychology
Bachelor of Arts Degree in
Sociology
Bachelor Degree in Business
Administration in Accounting
Bachelor Degree in Business
Administration in
Management
Bachelor Degree in
Education in Secondary
Education-English
Bachelor Degree in
Education in Secondary
Education-Spanish
Bachelor Degree in
Education in Elementary
English Education
Bachelor Degree of Arts in
General Humanities
Bachelor Degree in Sciences
in General Natural Sciences
Bachelor Degree in Sciences
in Biology
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Middle States
Commission on
Higher Education
(MSCHE)
National Council
for Accreditation of
Teacher Education
(NCATE)

Accredited

●
●
●
●

Bachelor Degree in Sciences
in Chemistry
Bachelor Degree in Sciences
in Mathematics
Bachelor Degree of Arts in
General Social Sciences
Bachelor Degree of Arts in
Psychology

[Note: The Commission will notify other USDE recognized creditors if the teach-out agreement
is approved.]
A review of teach out institution catalogs and academic programs in the region was completed.
Appropriate matches among students and programs were selected. Institutions were identified as
an appropriate match if they were accredited, were able to provide a smooth transition and were
close to the UPR-Cayey.
An institutional information session will be held in the university, where students will able to share
their transcripts with institutions of their choice and consider their options. Follow-up sessions will
be planned for students within specific programs and with specific institutions that best match their
programs’ curriculum. The Dean of Academic Affairs and the Dean of Student Affairs will
coordinate the information sessions and follow up visits.
➢

The institution is required to provide signed Teach-Out Agreement(s) for each teach-out
institution listed above. Include any additional documentation supporting the teach-out
agreement(s) (i.e. course equivalencies, etc.). If signed agreements are not yet available, the
Commission will require an updated teach-out plan including signed teach-out
agreements. Label each attachment 12-TeachOutAgree_ShortInstitutionName.

2. Describe how the teach-out institution(s) will provide access to program(s) and services without
requiring students to move or travel great distances.
Not applicable. The UPR-Cayey has not reached a Teach-Out Agreement with any of the teachout institutions.
3. Describe how the teach-out institution(s) operate(s) in a manner that is consistent with the
Commission’s standards for accreditation, requirements of affiliation, policies and procedures, and
federal compliance requirements.
Not applicable. The UPR-Cayey has not reached a Teach-Out Agreement with any of the teachout institutions. However, all teach-out institutions are accredited by the MSCHE and some
academic programs are accredited by professional accrediting agencies recognized by the USDE.
4. Describe how the teach-out institution(s) has/have the necessary resources and support services
to ensure, insofar as possible without additional charge to students, an educational program that is
of acceptable quality and is reasonably similar in content, structure, and scheduling to the
program(s) slated for closure.
Not applicable. The UPR-Cayey has not reached a Teach-Out Agreement with any of the teachout institutions. However, all teach-out institutions are accredited by the MSCHE and some
academic programs are accredited by professional accrediting agencies recognized by the USDE.
5. Describe how the teach-out institution(s) has/have the resources to remain stable, carry out its
mission, and meet all of its obligations to students.
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Not applicable. The UPR-Cayey has not reached a Teach-Out Agreement with any of the teachout institutions. However, all teach-out institutions are accredited by the MSCHE and some
academic programs are accredited by professional accrediting agencies recognized by the USDE.
Section C: Checklist of Attachments
Provide the following attachments. Combine these attachments with the form and upload a single,
bookmarked PDF into the secure MSCHE portal. If a required document is not applicable to the type
of teach-out, please indicate N/A.
___
1-Teach-Out Timeline
Section A.1.c – Provide a comprehensive timeline for the teach-out, including critical milestones.
___
2-FinAid Counseling
Section A.2.c - Evidence that financial aid counseling has been conducted.
*Not required as instructed in MSCHE Guidance Video Conference (January 15, 2019).
___
3-Articulation Events
Section A.2.c - Evidence that onsite articulation events have taken place.
___
4-NotifIed Charges
Section A.3.a - Evidence that the institution has notified students of any additional charges.
*Not required as instructed in MSCHE Guidance Video Conference (January 15, 2019).
___
5-NotifTeach-Out
Section A.3.b - Evidence that the institution has notified all relevant stakeholders about the teach-out.
*Not required as instructed in MSCHE Guidance Video Conference (January 15, 2019).
___
6-Transcripts
Section A.4.a - Evidence that transcripts have been produced.
*Not required as instructed in MSCHE Guidance Video Conference (January 15, 2019).
___
7-Transfers
Section A.4.a - Evidence that transfers have been released.
*Not required as instructed in MSCHE Guidance Video Conference (January 15, 2019).
___
8-Transfer Repository
Section A.4.d - Evidence that student records have been transferred to the final repository.
*Not required as instructed in MSCHE Guidance Video Conference (January 15, 2019).
___
9-NotifStudentRecords
Section A.4.e – Evidence that communications regarding student records has occurred.
*Not required as instructed in MSCHE Guidance Video Conference (January 15, 2019).
___
10-External Requirements
Section A.5.b - Documentation outlining state or federal requirements for the type of teach-out plan.
*Not required as instructed in MSCHE Guidance Video Conference (January 15, 2019).
___
11-CharterDGAStatus
Section A.5.c - Documentation of the status of the charter or DGA.
___

12-TeachOutAgree_ShortInstitutionName
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Section B.1 - Signed Teach-Out Agreement(s) for each teach-out institution. Include any additional
documentation supporting the teach-out agreement(s) (i.e. course equivalencies, etc.).
*Not required as instructed in MSCHE Guidance Video Conference (January 15, 2019).

Section D: Certifications
By signing and submitting this Teach-Out Plans and Agreements Form, the individual below certifies
that:
The Teach-Out Plans and Agreements Policy and Procedures have been reviewed.
The information included in the form is accurate at the time of submission.
The institution will notify the Commission of subsequent, significant developments that could affect
the Commission’s review and action.
Each section of the form has been completed in its entirety.
Attachments that are required have been provided and are appropriately labeled.
The submission of this request for review by the Commission has been authorized by the
appropriate individuals at the institution.
The institution understands that the Commission reserves the right to reject insufficient or
incomplete teach-out plans and request an updated teach-out plan.
The institution understands that the Commission may require the institution to enter into teach-out
agreements with other institutions.
The Teach-Out Plans and Agreements Form must be submitted by the institution’s
Accreditation Liaison Officer (ALO)
Provide Name, Title, Email, and Phone Number of (ALO) submitting this request:
Name: Jose A. Molina-Cotto, PhD
Title: Professor of Biology and MSCHE-ALO
Email: jose.molina3@upr.edu
Phone Number: 787-209-0605
Please sign by typing the name of the Accreditation Liaison Officer (ALO) or including an electronic
signature of the ALO in the space provided:
Signature of ALO:
Number:
Version: 2019-01-01
Effective Date: January 1, 2019
Previously Issued: N/A
Initial Approval Date: December 19, 2018
Revisions: N/A
Related Documents: Teach-Out Plans and Agreements Procedures; Teach-Out Plans and Agreements Form; Substantive
Change Policy, Substantive Change Procedures;
Federal Regulations: 34 CFR §602.24(c)(1-5) Teach Out plans and agreements and §602.24(d) Closed institution.
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UNIVERSITY OF PUERTO RICO AT CAYEY
Chancellor’s Office
ACTION
Agreements will be made with
other institutions to receive
transferring students
The institution will notify students,
faculty, administrative, support
staff, stakeholder and external
community about the imminent
teach-out period.
Students who can complete
academic requirements by
program end date will be advise
of the academic offering available
to them.
Students who cannot complete
academic requirements by
program end date will be advised
regarding suitable options,
including transfer to comparable
programs and/or institutions with
agreements.
The student’s complete academic
records and all other related
information gathered in dossiers
will be delivered promptly.
Financial aid and federal or state
grants arrangements will be made
with the appropriate agencies to
transfer the grants to the receiving
institution.
Arrangements will be made to
reassign faculty and staff, or
assist them in locating other
employments.
The institution will evaluate the
staff needed to complete the
closure and that is required to
fulfill the institution legal
compromises.
The institution will evaluate the
staff needed to fulfill the institution
legal compromises
*Subjet to change.

TEACH-OUT TIMETABLE
TIMEFRAME
APRIL - MAY 2019

PERSON IN CHARGE
Chancellor
Dean of Academic Affairs

APRIL 2019

Chancellor

APRIL – JUNE 2019

Dean of Academic Affairs
Academic Program
Directors

APRIL – JUNE 2019

Dean of Academic Affairs
Academic Program
Directors

APRIL 2019 – MAY 2020

Dean of Academic Affairs
Register Office

MAY 2019 – MAY 2020

Dean of Students Affairs
Financial Aid Office

JUNE 2019

UPR President
UPR Board of Governor

As required

UPR Board of Governor
Chancellor
Dean of Administration

As required

UPR Board of Governor
Chancellor
Dean of Administration

PO Box 372230, Cayey, PR 00736-2230
205 Ave. Antonio R. Barceló – Cayey, PR 00736-9997
Tel. Directo (787) 738-4660 - (787) 738-2161, Exts. 2119, 2121, 2122 – Fax (787) 738-8039 – rectoria.cayey@upr.edu
Accredited by Middles States Commission on Higher Education
Equal Employment Opportunities Employer M/M/V/II

Universidad de Puerto Rico en Cayey
P O BOX 372230

Cayey, Puerto Rico 00737
Oficina de Asistencia Económica

CERTIFICACIÓN DE ORIENTACION DE ASISTENCIA ECONÓMICA
_____________________________
Nombre del Estudiante

___________________
Número de Estudiante

Certifico que fui orientado sobre:
____ __ Corrección en FAFSA para incluir el código federal de la institución referida o de
preferencia.
Código federal de la Institución: _________
_______ Lifetime Elegibility Used (LEU).
LEU: ________% o _________ años.
_______ Recibo de documentos de expedientes seleccionados para verificación, si aplica.
Grupo de Verificación: _________

Verificación: _________

No vino en Verificación: _________
_______ Balances e información de servidores de préstamos estudiantes.
No Aplica: _________

Aplica: _________

Información de préstamos desembolsados
Año Académico

Cantidad Tipo de préstamo

Servidor

Realicé y recibî información de
entrevista de salida

_________________________
Firma del estudiante

_______________
Fecha

________________
Sello

Universidad de Puerto Rico en Cayey
P O BOX 372230

Cayey, Puerto Rico 00737
Oficina de Asistencia Económica

FINANCIAL AID COUNSELING FORM
_____________________________
Student Name

___________________
Identification Number

I certified that I was financial aid counseling on:
____ __ Correction on FAFSA to include the federal school code referral or preference.
Federal School Code: ___________
_______ Lifetime Elegibility Used (LEU).
LEU: ________% o _________ años.
_______ Receipt of documents from selected files for verification, if applicable.
Verification Group: ________

Verification: _________

No Verification: _________
_______ Balances and information of student loan servers.
Not Apply: _________

Apply: _________
Loan Information (s) disbursed

Academic Year

Amount

Type of Loan

Loan Server

I made and received exit
interview information

_________________________
Financial Aid Officer

_______________
Date

________________
Seal

Universidad de Puerto Rico en Cayey
P O BOX 372230

Cayey, Puerto Rico 00737
Formulario Consejería Académica
_____________________________
Nombre estudiante

___________________
Numero estudiante

Certifico que recibí consejería académica durante el día de hoy. Continuaré con el plan académico
discutido hoy el cual me permitirá completar mi grado académico durante el teach-out period.
Entiendo que es mi responsabilidad completar el programa y cumplir con todos los requisitos de
graduación.
Fall 20-Course Number

Course Name

Credit Hours

Comments

Course Name

Credit Hours

Comments

Course Name

Credit Hours

Comments

Course Name

Credit Hours

Comments

Spring 20-Course Number

Fall 20-Course Number

Spring 20-Course Number

Signature: ___________________________________ Date: ______________

Universidad de Puerto Rico en Cayey
P O BOX 372230

Cayey, Puerto Rico 00737
Academic counseling form
_____________________________
Student Name

___________________
Identification Number

I certified that I received the following academic counseling today. I will follow the
proposed academic plan which will enables me to complete my degree program within the teach-out
period. I understand it is my responsibility to complete the program and meet all requirements for
graduation within the teach-out period.
Fall 20-Course Number

Course Name

Credit Hours

Comments

Course Name

Credit Hours

Comments

Course Name

Credit Hours

Comments

Course Name

Credit Hours

Comments

Spring 20-Course Number

Fall 20-Course Number

Spring 20-Course Number

Signature: ___________________________________ Date: ______________

UNIVERSITY OF PUERTO RICO AT CAYEY
Chancellor’s Office

Date

Dear students:
On _________, the Middle States Commission of Higher Education (MSCHE) decided to
remove the accreditation of the University of Puerto Rico at Cayey. The MSCHE action in no
way is an indicator of past and present quality of our academic programs, nor is an indicator of
the potential the UPR-Cayey have. The MSCHE action was based on the Commission’s opinion
that the UPR-Cayey cannot sustain its current mission and goals due to fiscal uncertainties.
Therefore, as requested by the MSCHE and the United States Department of Education, we
regret to inform you the UPR-Cayey will no longer participate in federal programs effective
_________.
During this period, the institution will activate a Teach-Out and a Teach-Out Agreement Plan.
The goals of these plans are to make every effort to assist affected students so they can
experience a minimal amount of disruption in the pursuit of their course of study or professional
careers. The UPR-Cayey and the MSCHE will work with the U.S. Department of Education and
the appropriate State agency, to the extent feasible, to ensure that students are given reasonable
opportunities to complete their education without additional charges. Also, the UPR-Cayey agree
to smooth the transition between several institutions.
If you are not currently an active student, you should contact the Register Office (phone
XXXXX) in order to submit a request for your college records. If you are current student the
institution has made arrangement for you to pursue an academic degree in other accredited
institutions or to continue and finish your degree during the teach out period. The following
options are available:
Option 1: Arrangements have been made to transfer your course work into the university you
choose to continue your education. You should contact your academic director or academic
advisor as soon as possible to be sure that your records are correct and up to date. They will be
able to advise you in more detail and make suggestions concerning future academic and career
decisions.
Option 2: During the teach out period, you will be permitted to continue in the program;
however, you must participate in a series of academic counseling sections that will be offered
after which you will complete a counseling document that will include your courses during this
PO Box 372230, Cayey, PR 00736-2230
205 Ave. Antonio R. Barceló – Cayey, PR 00736-9997
Tel. Directo (787) 738-4660 - (787) 738-2161, Exts. 2119, 2121, 2122 – Fax (787) 738-8039 – rectoria.cayey@upr.edu
Accredited by Middles States Commission on Higher Education
Equal Employment Opportunities Employer M/M/V/II

teach out period. The institution will guarantee that the courses will be available. After a
determined date, no further course work in this program of study will be offered.
I encourage you to consider your academic goals and explore your options with your
program director, your academic advisor or with the registrar office. I wish you well in your
future academic pursuits.

Sincerely,
Chancellor

UNIVERSITY OF PUERTO RICO AT CAYEY
Chancellor’s Office

Date

Dear students:
On _________, the Middle States Commission of Higher Education (MSCHE) decided to
remove the accreditation of the University of Puerto Rico at Cayey. The MSCHE action in no
way is an indicator of past and present quality of our academic programs, nor is an indicator of
the potential the UPR-Cayey have. The MSCHE action was based on the Commission’s opinion
that the UPR-Cayey cannot sustain its current mission and goals due to fiscal uncertainties.
Therefore, as requested by the MSCHE and the United States Department of Education, we
regret to inform you the UPR-Cayey will no longer participate in federal programs effective
_________.
During this period, the institution will activate a Teach-Out and a Teach-Out Agreement Plan.
The goals of these plans are to make every effort to assist affected students so they can
experience a minimal amount of disruption in the pursuit of their course of study or professional
careers. The UPR-Cayey and the MSCHE will work with the U.S. Department of Education and
the appropriate State agency, to the extent feasible, to ensure that students are given reasonable
opportunities to complete their education without additional charges. Also, the UPR-Cayey agree
to smooth the transition between several institutions.
If you are not currently an active student, you should contact the Register Office (phone
XXXXX) in order to submit a request for your college records. If you are current student the
institution has made arrangement for you to pursue an academic degree in other accredited
institutions or to continue and finish your degree during the teach out period. The following
options are available:
Option 1: Arrangements have been made to transfer your course work into the university you
choose to continue your education. You should contact your academic director or academic
advisor as soon as possible to be sure that your records are correct and up to date. They will be
able to advise you in more detail and make suggestions concerning future academic and career
decisions.
Option 2: During the teach out period, you will be permitted to continue in the program;
however, you must participate in a series of academic counseling sections that will be offered
after which you will complete a counseling document that will include your courses during this
PO Box 372230, Cayey, PR 00736-2230
205 Ave. Antonio R. Barceló – Cayey, PR 00736-9997
Tel. Directo (787) 738-4660 - (787) 738-2161, Exts. 2119, 2121, 2122 – Fax (787) 738-8039 – rectoria.cayey@upr.edu
Accredited by Middles States Commission on Higher Education
Equal Employment Opportunities Employer M/M/V/II

teach out period. The institution will guarantee that the courses will be available. After a
determined date, no further course work in this program of study will be offered.
I encourage you to consider your academic goals and explore your options with your
program director, your academic advisor or with the registrar office. I wish you well in your
future academic pursuits.

Sincerely,
Chancellor

CEPR ALA-01
MARZO 2017
GOBIERNO DE PUERTO RICO
CONSEJO DE EDUCACIÓN DE PUERTO RICO
ÁREA DE LICENCIAMIENTO Y ACREDITACIÓN

FORMULARIO PARA EL CIERRE DE OPERACIONES
DE INSTITUCIONES DE EDUCACIÓN SUPERIOR EN PUERTO RICO

Aprobado el 15 de marzo de 2017
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Formulario-Cierre Institucional
INTRODUCCIÓN

El Consejo de Educación de Puerto Rico (CEPR), creado por el Plan de Reorganización Núm. 1 de 26 de julio de 2010
(PR 1), es la agencia gubernamental encargada de administrar la política pública sobre los estándares de la educación
de Puerto Rico, dentro del marco normativo que establece el Plan. El CEPR tiene entre sus facultades principales
expedir licencias a todas las instituciones de educación que interesen operar en Puerto Rico y acreditar las
instituciones de educación básica públicas y privadas.
La licencia es un permiso que el Consejo de Educación de Puerto Rico otorga a una institución para operar como una
institución de educación superior en Puerto Rico. Se concede en función del resultado favorable que arroje la
evaluación sobre el cumplimiento con los requisitos establecidos en el Reglamento para el Licenciamiento de
Instituciones de Educación Superior en Puerto Rico, Núm. 8265 (2012). A tales efectos, la certificación que expide el
Consejo indicará en forma taxativa el nombre de la institución, sus unidades o localidades y su ubicación geográfica,
los ofrecimientos académicos, la metodología educativa, y el término de vigencia de la licencia.
La institución que se proponga cerrar operaciones total o parcialmente deberá notificar por escrito al Consejo con por
lo menos seis (6) meses de antelación a la fecha de planificada para el cierre o con la antelación que las circunstancias
permitan. Notificará, además, a las autoridades federales y agencias acreditadoras aplicables para las acciones que
sean procedentes por parte de estas, de lo cual mantendrá informado al Consejo. En su notificación indicará qué
medidas ha implantado o se propone implantar para que los estudiantes afectados, la comunidad y el interés público
se perjudiquen lo menos posible con el cierre (Artículo 47, Reglamento 8265).
Una institución en proceso de cierre total o parcial que se proponga formalizar un acuerdo con otra(s) institución(es)
para la transferencia de la responsabilidad de finalizar el contrato educativo con los estudiantes (Teach Out
Agreements) debe de asegurarse que dicho acuerdo esta acorde con lo que dispone el Artículo 49 del Reglamento
8265.
La institución deberá establecer un mecanismo para que los estudiantes y egresados continúen recibiendo servicios
de transcripciones de créditos oficiales y otros documentos relacionados con registraduría académica, o en su
defecto, solicitará al Consejo que asuma la custodia de las transcripciones. La institución entregará al Consejo copia
microfilmada o digitalizada de todos los expedientes académicos de los estudiantes y egresados desde el comienzo de
la operación de la misma, certificando que la información entregada es correcta.
Para el proceso de cierre la Institución tiene que completar este Formulario de Cierre de Operaciones y someterlo
dentro de un término no mayor de treinta (30) días laborables a partir de la fecha en la cual notificó la intención de
efectuar un cierre o dentro del término que el Consejo considere adecuado a base de la situación particular. El
Consejo evaluará y supervisará el proceso de cierre total o parcial, para asegurar que el mismo se lleve a cabo
salvaguardando el interés público, y podrá ordenar que la institución tome las providencias que a juicio del organismo
sean necesarias para lograr los objetivos mencionados en el Reglamento 8265. Además, podrá podrá efectuar visitas,
inspecciones y requerir la información necesaria para completar un cierre ordenado de las operaciones como
institución de educación superior y en protección de los estudiantes y del interés público. La institución tendrá la
obligación de facilitar las visitas o inspecciones y de proveer acceso a los documentos e información.
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Formulario-Cierre Institucional
I.

INFORMACION GENERAL DE LA INSTITUCIÓN

Indique nombre actual y cualquier otro nombre con que se haya conocido la institución
NOMBRE

Núm. Certificación

Indique todas las certificaciones de licencia de la institución desde su primera licencia. (añada cuantas líneas sean
necesarias)
Núm. Certificación
Fecha

Número
Dirección
Física:

Dirección
Postal

Calle

Urbanización/Sector
Pueblo

País

Número/Apartado

Calle

ZIP Code

Urbanización/Sector
Pueblo

Teléfono
E-mail

País
Fax:
Página Internet

ZIP Code

Tipo de Institución
Ejecutivo
Principal

Nombre y Apellidos
Título

Pública
Privada:
Sin Fines de Lucro
Con Fines de Lucro
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Formulario-Cierre Institucional
Oferta Académica (Añada las líneas que sean necesarias):

Título del Programa
según aprobado por el Consejo

Número de
Certificación

Número de
estudiantes para
el presente año
académico

Número de estudiantes
candidatos a
graduación para el
presente año
académico

Acreditaciones (puede añadir la cantidad de líneas que sea necesaria)
Nombre de la entidad:
Estatus
Vigencia

Candidata

Aprobada

Probatoria

Desde

Otra (indique)

Hasta

Nombre de la entidad:
Estatus
Vigencia

II.

Candidata

Aprobada

Probatoria

Desde

Otra (indique)

Hasta

INFORMACION RELACIONADA CON EL PROCESO DE CIERRE

Fecha oficial del cierre de operaciones de la institución
Razones para el cierre de operaciones (si es por quiebra, indique si se ha de cobijar bajo la Ley de Quiebras)

III. ESTUDIANTES
Lista de estudiantes candidatos a graduación durante el año de cierre de operaciones (Añada las líneas que sean
necesarias):
Nombre del estudiante
candidato a graduación

Núm. de ID del
estudiante

Título del Programa

Cursos que le
faltan por aprobar

Fecha estimada de
graduación

Si el cierre de la institución habrá de impedir que alguno de los estudiantes mencionados en la tabla anterior se
gradúe de la institución, indique - por cada estudiante afectado - si la institución ha gestionado su transferencia a otro
centro docente y el nombre de este. (Incluya copia de las cartas que documenten los acuerdos entre instituciones en
cuanto a la transferencia de cada estudiante y de su expediente académico y de ayudas económicas.) (Añada las
líneas que sean necesarias.)

Nombre del estudiante a ser

Nombre de la institución a la

Existe un acuerdo con la institución
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Formulario-Cierre Institucional
transferido

cual se va a transferir

de transferencia de aceptar al
estudiante

Lista de estudiantes que no son candidatos a graduación durante el año de cierre de operaciones (Añada las líneas
que sean necesarias):
Nombre del estudiante no
candidato a graduación

Núm. de ID de
estudiante

Título del Programa

Cursos que le
faltan por
aprobar

Fecha estimada de
graduación

En cuanto a cada uno de los estudiantes mencionados en la tabla anterior, indique si la institución ha gestionado su
transferencia a otro centro docente y el nombre de éste. (Incluya copia de las cartas que documenten los acuerdos
entre instituciones en cuanto a la transferencia de cada estudiante y de su expediente académico y de ayudas
económicas.) (Añada las líneas que sean necesarias)
Nombre del estudiante a ser
transferido

Nombre de la institución a la
cual se va a transferir

Existe un acuerdo con la institución de
transferencia de aceptar al estudiante

Planes institucionales para lograr la transferencia a otras instituciones de aquellos estudiantes con respecto a
los cuales aún no existe un acuerdo de transferencia.

IV.

EXPEDIENTES ACADÉMICOS1

El Artículo 48 del Reglamento 8265 dispone que la institución deberá establecer un mecanismo para que los
estudiantes y egresados continúen recibiendo servicios de transcripciones de créditos oficiales y otros documentos
relacionados con registraduría académica, o en su defecto, solicitará al Consejo que asuma la custodia de las
transcripciones. Independientemente de la decisión de la institución, ésta entregará al Consejo copia microfilmada o
digitalizada de todos los expedientes académicos de los estudiantes y egresados desde el comienzo de la operación
de la misma, certificando que la información entregada es correcta. La misma será conservada en la bóveda que el
CEPR mantiene para estos fines.
La microfilmación deberá cumplir con lo establecido en las normas para la entrega de expedientes académicos de
instituciones de educación bajo la jurisdicción del CEPR en proceso de cierre institucional. Si opta por digitalizar los
expedientes, la institución sufragará los costos en que tenga que incurrir el CEPR para adquirir el equipo y servicios
1El expediente académico consiste de transcripción de créditos, diploma y certificación de graduación, estos últimos si
el estudiante completó el grado. Los documentos sobre asistencia económica, historial médico y matrículas, entre
otros, no forman parte del expediente académico.

Formulario-Cierre Institucional
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necesarios para leer e imprimir la información digitalizada tanto en disco compacto como en disco óptico. La
institución entregará el índice de búsqueda2 de los expedientes académicos.
Seleccione la opción que mejor represente la decisión de la institución con relación a los servicios de registraduría:

Continuar brindando el servicio de registraduría. Si marcó esta opción deberá cumplir con lo siguiente:
 La institución deberá informar previamente y por escrito al CEPR cualquier cambio de persona contacto,
dirección física, dirección postal, números de teléfono, correo electrónico, y días y horas de oficina
destinados para brindar el servicio de Registraduría. El CEPR publicará en su página cibernética esta
información.
 La institución deberá atender las solicitudes de servicio de registraduría en un tiempo no mayor de dos
semanas. Las solicitudes por parte de los egresados deben ser por escrito en cumplimiento con la Ley de
Derechos Educacionales y Privacidad de la Familia de 1974 (FERPA, por sus siglas en inglés).
 Los expedientes académicos deben ser conservados en un área segura y en archivos adecuados, permanentes
y a prueba de fuego, debidamente resguardados contra robos, incendios, inundaciones y otras catástrofes, así
como contra usos indebidos y otros riesgos a su seguridad e integridad.
 La institución no podrá destruir, enajenar, alterar o disponer de ninguno de los documentos microfilmados o
digitalizados, los cuales permanecerán en la dirección física notificada. En caso de ocurrir una acción de
desahucio o cualquier otra circunstancia que obligue a trasladar esos documentos a otro lugar, la institución
tendrá la obligación de informar al CEPR previo a efectuar el traslado. El CEPR evaluará la futura ubicación de
los documentos con el propósito de aprobar o desaprobar la misma. Si el CEPR desaprueba el traslado, le
requerirá a la institución la entrega inmediata de los documentos, quien los llevará, a su costo, al lugar que el
CEPR indique.
 La institución no ofrecerá cursos, otorgará grados ni de ninguna otra forma operará una institución de
educación superior en Puerto Rico, sin previamente solicitar y obtener del CEPR una nueva licencia de
autorización de acuerdo con el Reglamento.
Solicitar al CEPR que brinde el servicio de registraduría. Si marcó esta opción deberá cumplir con lo siguiente:
 La institución entregará, microfilmados o digitalizados, todos los expedientes académicos, según se indicó
previamente.
 La institución no ofrecerá cursos, otorgará grados ni de ninguna otra forma operará una institución de
educación superior en Puerto Rico, sin previamente solicitar y obtener del CEPR una nueva licencia de
autorización de acuerdo con el Reglamento vigente.

V.

EXPEDIENTES FINANCIEROS ESTUDIANTILES

Indique qué información contienen los expedientes financieros estudiantiles (ej. pagos de cuotas y matrículas
reembolsos otros):
2 El “índice de búsqueda” es un registro donde aparece el nombre de cada expediente ordenado alfabéticamente de
manera que los mismos puedan ser fácilmente localizados en la micropelícula.
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Lista de estudiantes que a la fecha de cierre la institución proyecta reembolsarles por concepto de servicios pagados y
no recibidos (Añada las líneas que sean necesarias)
Nombre del estudiante que
recibirá el reembolso

Núm. de ID

Cantidad a
reembolsar

Concepto

VI. RESPONSABILIDAD PÚBLICA
Mecanismos que utilizó la Institución para notificar a los estudiantes activos, inactivos y egresados
informando dónde estarán accesibles las copias de sus expedientes. Incluya la evidencia.

La Institución publicó un anuncio en algún periódico de circulación general informando sobre el cierre de
operaciones y dónde se estará ofreciendo el servicio de registraduría a sus egresados. Incluya el nombre del
periódico la fecha y copia anuncio publicado.

Lista de todos los catálogos con los programas de estudios que estuvieron vigentes en la institución durante
sus operaciones con los cambios incorporados y las fechas. Incluya copia de cada catálogo. (Digitalizados)

VII. OTROS
Indique qué otras medidas han implantado la institución para que los estudiantes, la comunidad y el interés
público se afecten lo menos posible con el cierre institucional.

Incluya cualquier otra información que la institución considere relevante para este proceso.

VIII. CERTIFICACIÓN
Certifico que toda la información y los documentos aquí incluidos, así como los que se sometan durante el proceso de
cierre son veraces, correctos y de conformidad con las disposiciones reglamentarias aplicables.
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Reconozco que la información y documentación puede ser constatada y que ofrecer información incorrecta, falsa o
engañosa podría implicar incumplimiento con estos estatutos. Tal incumplimiento puede implicar sanciones
económicas o consecuencias hacia la licencia de la institución.

REGISTRADOR - Nombre

Firma

PRINCIPAL OFICIAL DE LA INSTITUCIÓN-Nombre

Firma

Firmado en _____________________, Puerto Rico, hoy ____ de ________________ de 20__.

